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both sot growth rates and strong operating margins We also

acquired smaller businesses in emerging markets such as the

Brazffian industrial chemical company Archem In fact more than

oo percent Of our 2011 cc uis tions are directly tied to emerging

markets and platforrrvretted growth initiatives

BULDNG SHAREHOLDER VALUE

In 2011 we consistently generated returns significantly above

the cost of our investments to achieve 88 percent return

on average invested capital ROIC But this is only part of how

12W is creating shareholder value We are also aiming for more

profitrtaility by improving the operating margins of these acquired

businesses and our base businesses by applying signature

ITW principles such as 80/20 and simplification

But more importantly rOWs consistently high return on

investment and growth drive higher profits which in turn gives

our shareholders long-term value and reward In fact over the

past 25 years our strategies have yielded an average 13 percent

compounded annual rate of return for our shareholders

One hallmark of the few companies that endure 100 years is

successful leadership talent and succession We are proud of

our strong track record of leadership continuity The strategic

planning and guidance of highly experienced leaders with long

tenures is integral to our longevity and has kept us on the path

to profitable growth

In early 2012 Dahiel Brutto and James Ofiffith were

elected to the iTW Board of Directors Ban is president of

UPS International responsible for all international package

freight forwarding and logistics businesses as well as US
international package services Jim is president and chief

executive officer of The Timken Company and member of its

hoard of directorS Eoth Dan and Jim have broad range of

operational and financial experience that will be an asset to

12W and it BOard of Directors We look forward to their

valuable contributions in the years ahead

We bid fond fa.rewell to Director Marvin Brailsford who

retired in 2011 after 14 years of service to ITWs Board of

Directors We also say goodbye to several dedicated officers

who retired in early 2012 Philip Gresh Jr executive vice

president retired after 22 years of service Thomas Hansen

vice chairman retired after 31 years of service and James

VVooten Jr senior vice president general counsel and secretary

retired after 23 years of service We appreciate their many

valuable contributions to 12W and wish them the very best in

the years ahead

We are optimistic that the economic recovery will continue its

upward trajectory in 2012 although at more modest pace

We anticipate challenges in geographies such as Europe

and expect that global economic demand will remain uneven

However through innovation and applying our toolbox to existing

businesses 12W can further penetrate these sloweogrowing

economies At the same time we plan to continue investing

in highecgrowth platforms and emerging markets We are

committed to longUerm balanced strategy of profitable

growth and strong returns

As company that has stood the test of time we believe we

can meet these expectations The values that formed small

Midwestern tool company century ago are still with us today

innovation quality integrity and giving hack to our communities

Our values and principles have been refined and expanded but

never discarded We thank the many talented women and men

of 12W past and present for upholding our values and helping

us to reach our 00year anniversary

Congratulations to everyone at ITW all over the world on our

historic achievement We look forward to bright and prosperous

future for our customers our shareholders and our people

David Speer

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

David Parry

Vice Chairman

Scott Santi

Vice Chairman
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II nois Tool \tvorks founded

by nancier Byron Smith

and inventors Frank

Egund Cm Oson

Paul Godoard and

Oscar Hegg It opens

for business at the corner
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at sets CHcago

11W acquires Shakeproof

Screw and Nut Lock

Company and enjoys its

first blockbuster product

success by licensing the

Shakeproof lock washer

NTURY
OF NNOVABON
AND GROWTH

ITW was born in partnership between Byron Smith founder

of The Northern Trust Company and four tooling company

employees from Rockford Illinois who came to Smith as

potential nvestor in their new method for making more precise

industrial gears After
initially resishng the proposal of these

four men Frank Englund Carl Olson Paul Goddard

and Oscar HeggSmith finally agreed to back their venture

Together they launched Illinois Tool Works which began selling

cutters hobs jigs and other machining tools in 1912 from

leased lot at the corner of Huron and Franklin streets in Chicago

The fledgling company quickly thrived soon finding itself in

need of employees and 12000 square feet of additional space

to keep up with the demand for its products And though most

new companies remain in the red for some years after launching

Illinois Tool Works managed to post profit of $42.94 in its first

year of operation an auspicious beginning made possible by
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11W acquires Premark International

which included Hobart Food Equipment

and Wlsonart high-pressure laminate

ITW acquires Instron leading

worldwide suppher of instruments

software and services for the testing

of materials and structures

11W acquires SOPUS portfolio of

automotive maintenance brands such

as Rain-X Gumout and Black Magic

and renames it 11W Global Brands

growing decentralized 11W has retained unified culture and

remained close to its customers by developing signature set

of best practices dubbed the 11W Toolbox In the mid-1980s

management began exploring concepts that could be applied

to all of ts businesses such as the 80/20 principle of reducing

unneces$ary complexity and improving performance By the

1990s was clear that the 80/20 rule worked well and it

evolved into new tools like product line simplification in lining

and market rate of demand In 2000 11W adopted new

tool market segmentation selling and had engaged all of its

businesses with the toolboxeven implementing online training

to ensure alignment across the company

TW has emerged strong from the recession of 2008-2009 and

beg ns its second century prepared to tackle the challenges

and opportunities ahead Though it hasnt been immune to

the effects of the global economic crisis of recent years the

fundamentals that have given the company its strength for 100

years have not been compromised The company is busy setting

ts sights on tomorrow with all of the confidence and expectation

for success that has guided it through challenges in the past
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

16544281 15549806 13253660 12028521 10836381 9201303 8669002 8490837

2409838 2534773 2286250 2021442 1807870 1406557 1317685 1125409

2259669 2490999 2293546 2063761 1884903 1470169 1346673 1135504

635706 726321 675687 641880 615424 497702 473011 395504

1623963 1764678 1617859 1421881 1269479 972467 873662 740000

104960 105184 99887 72988 69215 51213 52279 65659

213349

1519003 1869862 1717746 1494869 1338694 1023680 712592 805659

3.12 3.17 2.84 2.47 2.08 1.57 142 1.21

0.20 0.19 0.18 0.13 0.11 0.08 0.08 0.11

0.35

2.91 3.36 3.01 2.60 2.20 1.66 1.16 1.32

928886 3205370 2569821 2110874 2471227 3294299 2276401 1587332

2109432 2194010 2053457 1807109 1876875 1728638 1631249 1633690

15203551 15525862 13880439 11445643 11351934 11193321 10623101 9822349

1247883 1888839 955610 958321 921098 920360 1460381 1267141

3681856 2299351 1418331 1211220 1124621 976454 1581985 1580588

10613997 10830058 9849356 8392897 8089817 7190735 7183372 7354877

7675091 9358231 9021232 7552094 7632586 7898764 6659074 6056513

1859912 2130942 1765022 1558441 1254237 1110429 1017332 1094464

598690 502430 398846 335092 304581 285399 272319 249141

1.150 0.910 0.705 0.585 0.500 0.465 0.445 0.410

1.180 0.980 0.750 0.610 0.520 0.470 0.450 0.420

362312 353355 301006 293102 282560 258312 271424 256562

367615 363701 319362 299232 294162 282277 277819 281723

324292 161043 124544 83842 59121 24276 27933 104585

14.6 16.3 17.2 16.8 16.7 15.3 15.2 13.3

19.1 19.2 19.5 18.7 16.3 13.4 13.7 12.9

15.4 17.4 17.5 16.9 15.9 12.9 11.8 10.0

15.38 17.65 16.15 13.45 13.06 12.80 10.86 9.93

32.4 19.7 13.6 13.8 128 11.0 19.2 20.7

35.05 53.54 46.19 44.00 46.34 41.96 32.43 33.86

499115 530097 558750 561627 584457 617273 613166 609853

518609 551549 565632 571058 604752 614138 612313 608224

203116 187811 136244 116274 111405 95414 90741 91816

65000 60000 55000 50000 49000 47500 48700 52000

50 52 53 22 24 28 21 29

1546982 812757 1378708 626922 587783 203726 188234 556199

RETURN ON AVERAGE RETURN ON AVERAGE FREE OPERATING CASH FLOW TOTAL DEBT TO TOTAL CAPITALIZATION

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY IN PERCENT INVESTED CAPITAL IN PERCENT IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS IN PERCENT
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Corporate Information

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Computershare Trust Company N.A

250 Royall Street

Canton MA 02021

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche LLP

111 South Wacker Drive

Chicago IL 60606

COMMON STOCK

ITW common stock is listed on the

New York Stock Exchange

Symbol ITVV

ANNUAL MEETING

Friday May4 2012 300p.m

The Northern Trust Company

50 South LaSalle Street

Chicago IL 60603

STOCK AND DIVIDEND ACTION

The companys dividend guideline provides for

the dividend payout rate to be in range of 30

to 45 percent of the companys last two years

average free operating cash flow Effective with

the October 12 2011 payment the quarterly

cash dividend on common stock was

increased to 36 cents per share ITWs annual

dividend payment has increased 48 consecutive

years except during period of government

controls in 1971

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The IflN Common Stock Dividend Reinvestment

Plan enables registered shareholders to reinvest

the ITW dividends they receive in additional shares

of common stock of the company at no additional

cost Participation in the plan is voluntary and

shareholders may join or withdraw at any time

The plan also allows for additional voluntary cash

investments in any amount from $100 to $10000

per month For brochure and full details of the

program please direct inquiries to

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY N.A

Dividend Reinvestment Service

250 Royall Street

Canton MA 02021

888.829.7424

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Questions regarding stock ownership dividend

payments or change of address should be

directed to the companys transfer agent

Computershare Trust Company N.A

For additional assistance regarding stock

holdings please contact

Janet Love

Deputy General Counsel

847.724.7500

Security analysts and investment professionals

should contact

John Brooklier

Vice President of Investor Relations

847.657.4104

MEDIA INQUIRES

Please contact

Alison Donnelly

Corporate Communications Manager

847.657.4565

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

On June 2011 the companys chairman chief

executive officer certified to the New York Stock

Exchange NYSE that he is not aware of any

violation by the company of the NYSE corporate

governance listing standards The company has

provided certifications by the chairman chief

executive officer and the senior vice president

chief financial officer regarding the quality of the

companys public disclosure as required by

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act on Exhibit

31 in its 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K

TRADEMARKS

Certain trademarks in this publication are owned

or licensed by Illinois Tool Works Inc or its wholly

owned subsidiaries

HI-CONE RECYCLING

ITW Hi-Cone manufacturer of recyclable

multi-pack ring carriers offers assistance to

schools offices and communities interested in

establishing carrier collection programs

For more information please contact

ITW HI-CONE

1140 West Bryn Mawr Avenue

Itasca IL 60143

630.438.5300

www.hi-cone.com

SIGNODE PLASTIC STRAP RECYCLING AND

PET BOTTLE COLLECTION PROGRAMS

Some of Signodes plastic strapping is made

from post-consumer strapping and PET beverage

bottles The company has collection programs

for both these materials For more information

about post-consumer strapping recycling and

post-consumer PET bottles large volume only

please contact

11W SIGNODE

7080 Industrial Road

Florence KY 41042

859.342.6400

INTERNET HOME PAGE

www.itw.com

DESIGN

Smith Design Co

Evanston Illinois
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PART

ITEM Business

General

Illinois Tool Works Inc the Company or ITW was founded in 1912 and incorporated in 1915 The Company

is multinational manufacturer of diversified range of industrial products and equipment with operations in 58

countries These businesses are internally reported as 52 operating segments to senior management The Companys

52 operating segments have been aggregated into the following eight external reportable segments

Transportation Businesses in this segment produce components fasteners fluids and polymers as well as truck

remanufacturing and related parts and service

In the Transportation segment products and services include

plastic and metal components fasteners and assemblies for automobiles and light trucks

fluids polymers and other supplies for auto aftermarket maintenance and appearance

fillers and putties for auto body repair

polyester coatings and patch and repair products for the marine industry and

truck remanufacturing and related parts and service

Power Systems Electronics Businesses in this segment produce equipment and consumables associated with

specialty power conversion metallurgy and electronics

In the Power Systems Electronics segment products include

arc welding equipment

metal arc welding consumables and related accessories

metal solder materials for PC board fabrication

equipment and services for microelectronics assembly

electronic components and component packaging

static and contamination control equipment

airport ground support equipment and

pressure sensitive adhesives and components for telecommunications electronics medical and transportation

applications

Industrial Packaging Businesses in this segment produce steel plastic and
paper products and equipment used for

bundling shipping and protecting goods in transit

In the Industrial Packaging segment products include

steel and plastic strapping and related tools and equipment

plastic stretch film and related equipment

paper and plastic products that protect goods in transit and

metal jacketing and other insulation products

Food Equipment Businesses in this segment produce commercial food equipment and related service

In the Food Equipment segment products and services include

warewashing equipment

cooking equipment including ovens ranges and broilers

refrigeration equipment including refrigerators freezers and prep tables

food processing equipment including slicers mixers and scales

kitchen exhaust ventilation and pollution control systems and

food equipment service maintenance and repair



Construction Products Businesses in this segment produce tools fasteners and other products for construction

applications

In the Construction Products segment products include

fasteners and related fastening tools for wood and metal applications

anchors fasteners and related tools for concrete applications

metal plate truss components and related equipment and software and

packaged hardware fasteners anchors and other products for retail

Polymers Fluids Businesses in this segment produce adhesives sealants lubrication and cutting fluids and

hygiene products

In the Polymers Fluids segment products include

adhesives for industrial construction and consumer purposes

chemical fluids which clean or add lubrication to machines

epoxy and resin-based coating products for industrial applications and

hand wipes and cleaners for industrial applications

Decorative Surfaces Businesses in this segment produce decorative surfacing materials for furniture office and

retail space countertops and other applications

In the Decorative Surfaces segment products include

decorative high-pressure laminate for furniture office and retail space and countertops and

high-pressure laminate worktops

All Other This segment includes all other operating segments

In the All Other segment products include

equipment and related software for testing and measuring of materials and structures

plastic reclosable packaging for consumer food storage

plastic consumables that multi-pack cans and bottles and related equipment

plastic fasteners and components for appliances furniture and industrial uses

metal fasteners and components for appliances and industrial applications

foil film and related equipment used to decorate consumer products

product coding and marking equipment and related consumables and

line integration conveyor systems and line automation for the food and beverage industries



80/20 Business Process

key element of the Companys business strategy is its continuous 80/20 business
process

for both existing

businesses and new acquisitions The basic concept of this 80/20 business
process

is to focus on what is most

important the 20% of the items which account for 80% of the value and to spend less time and resources on the

less important the 80% of the items which account for 20% of the value The Companys operations use this

80/20 business process to simplify and focus on the key parts of their business and as result reduce complexity

that often disguises what is truly important The Companys operations utilize the 80/20
process

in various aspects

of their business Common applications of the 80/20 business process include

Simplifying product lines by reducing the number of products offered by combining the features of similar

products outsourcing products or as last resort eliminating low-value products

Segmenting the customer base by focusing on the 80/20 customers separately and finding alternative ways to

serve the 20/80 customers

Simplifying the supplier base by partnering with 80/20 suppliers and reducing the number of 20/80 suppliers

Designing business processes systems and measurements around the 80/20 activities

The result of the application of this 80/20 business
process is that the Company has over time improved its long-term

operating and financial performance These 80/20 efforts can result in restructuring projects that reduce costs and

improve margins Corporate management works closely with those businesses that have operating results below

expectations to help those businesses better apply this 80/20 business process and improve their results

Acquisitions and Divestitures

As part of the Companys ongoing strategy the Company acquires businesses with complementary products and

services as well as larger acquisitions that represent potential new platforms Refer to the Acquisitions note in

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for discussion of the Companys acquired businesses

The Company periodically reviews its operations for businesses which may no longer be aligned with its long-term

objectives Refer to the Discontinued Operations note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for

discussion of the Companys discontinued operations

Current Year Developments

Refer to Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations



Financial Information about Segments and Markets

Segment and operating results are included in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations and the Segment Information note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data

The principal end markets served by the Companys eight segments by percentage
of revenue are as follows

Transpor

End Markets Served tation

Commercial Construction 1%

Residential Construction

Renovation Construction

General Industrial

Automotive OEM/Tiers 56

Automotive Aftermarket 31

Food Institutional/Restaurant

Food Service

Food Retail

Consumer Durables

Food Beverage

Electronics 17

Primary Metals

Other 25 27 16

W0% 0%

Power

Systems Industrial Food Construction Polymers Decorative All Total

Electronics Packaging Equipment Products Fluids Surfaces Other Company

4% 6% 22% 11% 55% 1% 8%

44 14

26 30

43 26 31 22 18

12

43

36

16

15

13 21

21

26 33

100% 100% 100% 100%

Other includes several end markets some of which are maintenance repair and operations or MRO paper

products and printing and publishing

The Companys businesses primarily distribute their products directly to industrial manufacturers and through

independent distributors

Backlog

Backlog generally is not considered significant factor in the Companys businesses as relatively short delivery

periods and rapid inventory turnover are characteristic of most of its products Backlog by segment as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows

In Thousands 2011 2010

Transportation 373000 315000

Power Systems Electronics 245000 180000

Industrial Packaging 151000 17000

Food Equipment 213000 204000

Construction Products 32000 33000

Polymers Fluids 55000 60000

Decorative Surfaces 31000 26000

All Other 391000 366000

Total $1491000 $1301000

Backlog orders scheduled for shipment beyond calendar
year

2012 were not material as of December 31 2011



The information set forth below is applicable to all industry segments of the Company unless otherwise noted

Competition

With operations in 58 countries the Company offers wide range of products in myriad of markets many of which

are fragmented and we encounter variety of competitors that vary by product line end market and geographic area

Our competitors include many regional or specialized companies as well as large U.S and non-U.S companies or

divisions of large companies Each of our segments generally has several main competitors and numerous smaller

ones in most of their end markets and geographic areas In addition to numerous smaller regional competitors the

welding business in the Power Systems Electronics segment competes globally with Lincoln Electric and the

Decorative Surfaces segment competes globally with the Formica Group

In virtually all segments we compete on the basis of product innovation product quality brand preference service

delivery and price Technical capability is also competitive factor in most of our segments We believe that for each

of our segments our primary competitive advantages derive from our decentralized operating structure which

creates strong focus on end markets and customers at the local level enabling our businesses to respond rapidly to

market dynamics This structure enables our business units to drive operational excellence utilizing our 80/20

business process and leverages our product innovation capabilities We also believe that our global footprint is

competitive advantage in many of our markets especially in our Transportation and Decorative Surfaces segments

Raw Materials

The Company uses raw materials of various types primarily steel resins chemicals and paper that are available

from numerous commercial sources The availability of materials and energy has not resulted in any significant

business interruptions or other major problems and no such problems are currently anticipated

Research and Development

Developing new and improved products broadening the application of established products and continuing efforts

to improve and develop new methods processes and equipment all contribute to the Companys organic growth

Many new products are designed to reduce customers costs by eliminating steps in their manufacturing processes

reducing the number of parts in an assembly or by improving the quality of customers assembled products

Typically the development of such products is accomplished by working closely with customers on specific

applications Research and development expenses were $242979000 in 2011 $213339000 in 2010 and

$191859000 in 2009

Intellectual Property

The Company owns approximately 3800 unexpired U.S patents and 8500 foreign patents covering articles

methods and machines In addition the Company has approximately 1700 applications for patents pending in the

United States Patent Office and 5000 pending in foreign patent offices but there is no assurance that any of these

patents will be issued The Company maintains an active patent department for the administration of patents and

processing of patent applications

The Company believes that many of its patents are valuable and important however the expiration of any one of the

Companys patents would not have material effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position The

Company also credits its leadership in the markets it serves to engineering capability manufacturing techniques

skills and efficiency marketing and sales promotion and service and delivery of quality products to its customers

In addition to patents many of the Companys products and services are sold under various owned or licensed

trademarks which are important to the Company in the aggregate Some of the Companys more significant

trademarks include ITW which is also used in conjunction with many of its businesses Deltar and Shakeproof in the

Transportation segment Signode in the Industrial Packaging segment Miller in the Power Systems Electronics

segment Hobart in the Food Equipment segment Paslode in the Construction Products segment and Wilsonart in

the Decorative Surfaces segment

Environmental

The Company believes that its manufacturing plants and equipment are in substantial compliance with all applicable

environmental regulations Additional measures to maintain compliance are not expected to materially affect the

Companys capital expenditures competitive position financial position or results of operations

Various legislative and administrative regulations concerning environmental issues have become effective or are

under consideration in many parts of the world relating to manufacturing processes and the sale or use of certain

products To date such developments have not had substantial adverse impact on the Companys revenues or

earnings The Company has made considerable efforts to develop and sell environmentally compatible products



Employees

The Company employed approximately 65000 persons as of December 31 2011 and considers its employee

relations to be excellent

International

The Companys international operations include subsidiaries and joint ventures in 57 foreign countries on six

continents These operations serve such end markets as construction general industrial automotive food

institutional/restaurant and service food and beverage electronics consumer durables primary metals and others

on worldwide basis The Companys revenues from sales to customers outside the United States were

approximately 59% of revenues in 2011 58% of revenues in 2010 and 58% of revenues in 2009

Refer to Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the

Segment Information note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for additional information on

international activities International operations are subject to certain risks inherent in conducting business in foreign

countries including price controls exchange controls limitations on participation in local enterprises

nationalization expropriation and other governmental action and changes in currency exchange rates Additional

risks of our international operations are described under Item IA Risk Factors

Executive Officers

Executive Officers of the Company as of February 17 2012 were as follows

Name Office Age

Sharon Brady Senior Vice President Human Resources 61

Timothy Gardner Executive Vice President 56

Maria Green Senior Vice President General Counsel Secretary 59

Craig Hindman Executive Vice President 57

Ronald Kropp Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer 46

Roland Martel Executive Vice President 57

Steven Martindale Executive Vice President 55

Sundaram Nagarajan Executive Vice President 49

Christopher OHerlihy Executive Vice President 48

David Parry Vice Chairman 58

Scott Santi Vice Chairman 50

Randall Scheuneman Vice President ChiefAccounting Officer 44

David Speer Chairman Chief Executive Officer 60

Juan Valls Executive Vice President 50

Jane Warner Executive Vice President 65

The executive officers of the Company serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors Except for Ms Green

Ms Warner and Messrs Gardner Martindale Nagarajan OHerlihy Scheuneman and Valls each of the foregoing

officers has been employed by the Company in various elected executive capacities for more than five years

Ms Green was elected Senior Vice President General Counsel Secretary of the Company in February 2012 She

joined the Company in 1997 as an Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary became Deputy General

Counsel and Assistant Secretary in 2008 and was elected Vice President General Counsel Secretary in August

2011 Ms Warner was elected Executive Vice President in 2007 Prior to joining the Company in 2005 as President

of the worldwide finishing businesses she was President of Plexus Systems and Vice President of EDS
Mr Gardner was elected Executive Vice President in 2009 He joined the Company in 1997 and has held various

sales and management positions in the consumer packaging businesses Most recently he served as Group President

of the consumer packaging businesses Mr Martindale was elected Executive Vice President in 2008 Prior to joining

the Company in 2005 as President of the test and measurement businesses he was Chief Financial Officer and Chief

Operating Officer of Instron Mr Nagarajan was elected Executive Vice President in 2010 He joined the Company

in 1991 and has held various engineering and management positions in the welding businesses Most recently he

served as Group President within the welding businesses Mr OHerlihy was elected Executive Vice President in

2010 He joined the Company in 1989 and has held various operational management and leadership positions of

increasing responsibility Most recently he served as President international food equipment businesses

Mr Scheuneman was appointed Vice President and ChiefAccounting Officer in 2009 Prior to joining the Company

in 2009 he held several financial leadership positions at W.W Grainger Inc including Vice President Finance for

the Lab Safety Supply business from 2006 to 2009 and Vice President Internal Audit from 2002 to 2006 He was

appointed Principal Accounting Officer in 2009 Mr Valls was elected Executive Vice President in 2007 Prior to

this he was Vice President and General Manager of ITW Delfast International He joined the Company in 1989 and

held various management positions in the European automotive businesses



Available Information

The Company electronically files reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC The public may read

and copy any materials the Company has filed with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street

N.E Washington D.C 20549 The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room

by calling the SEC at l-800-SEC-0330 in addition the SEC maintains an internet site www.sec.gov that contains

reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the

SEC Copies of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form lO-Q and Current Reports

on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 are also available free of charge through the Companys website www.itw.com as soon as

reasonably practicable after electronically filing with or otherwise furnishing such information to the SEC and are

available in print to any shareholder who requests them Also posted on the Companys website are the following

Statement of Principles of Conduct

Code of Ethics for CEO and key financial and accounting personnel

Charters of the Audit Corporate Governance and Nominating and Compensation Committees of the Board

of Directors

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Global Anti-Corruption Policy

Corporate Citizenship Statement and

Government Affairs Information

ITEM 1A Risk Factors

The Companys business financial condition results of operations and cash flows are subject to various risks

including but not limited to those set forth below which could cause actual results to vary materially from recent

results or from anticipated future results These risk factors should be considered together with information included

elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Companys results are impacted by global economic conditions Weakness or downturns in the markets

served by the Company could adversely affect our business results of operations or financial condition

During 2010 and 2011 many of our end markets showed improvement in general economic conditions but

European economic conditions slowed in the second half of 2011 We cannot be assured that we will not experience

adverse effects from broad economic trends in Europe or other geographies Instability in global economic

conditions could have an adverse effect on the Companys business results of operations or financial condition

The global nature of our operations subjects the Company to political and economic risks that could adversely

affect our business results of operations or financial condition

The Company currently operates in 58 countries In 2011 approximately 59% of the Companys revenues were

generated from sales to customers outside of the U.S As the Company continues to expand its global footprint these

sales may represent an increasing portion of the Companys revenues The risks inherent in our global operations

include

fluctuation in currency exchange rates

limitations on ownership or participation in local enterprises

price controls exchange controls and limitations on repatriation of earnings

transportation delays and interruptions

political social and economic instability and disruptions

acts of terrorism

government embargoes or foreign trade restrictions

the imposition of duties and tariffs and other trade barriers

import and export controls

labor unrest and current and changing regulatory environments

the potential for expropriation or nationalization of enterprises

difficulties in staffing and managing multi-national operations

limitations on its ability to enforce legal rights and remedies and

potentially adverse tax consequences

if the Company is unable to successfully manage these and other risks associated with managing and expanding its

international businesses the risks could have material adverse effect on the Companys business results of

operations or financial condition

Our acquisition of businesses could negatively impact our profitability and return on invested capital

As part of our business strategy we acquire businesses in the ordinary course Our acquisitions involve number of

risks and financial accounting managerial and operational challenges including the following any of which could

adversely affect our growth and profitability



Any acquired business technology service or product could under-perform relative to our expectations

and the price that we paid for it or not perform in accordance with our anticipated timetable

Acquisitions could cause our financial results to differ from our expectations in any given fiscal period

or over the long term

Acquisition-related earnings charges could adversely impact operating results

Acquisitions could place unanticipated demands on our management operational resources and

financial and internal control systems

We may assume unknown liabilities known contingent liabilities that become realized or known

liabilities that prove greater than anticipated The realization of any of these liabilities may increase our

expenses or adversely affect our financial position

As result of our acquisitions we have recorded significant goodwill and other identifiable intangible

assets on our balance sheet If we are not able to realize the value of these assets we may incur charges

relating to the impairment of these assets

We may incur fines or penalties damage to our reputation or other adverse consequences if our employees

agents or business partners violate anti-bribery or other laws

We cannot provide assurance that our internal controls will always protect us from reckless or criminal acts

committed by our employees agents or business partners that would violate U.S andlor non-U.S laws including

anti-bribery laws competition and export and import compliance Any such improper actions could subject us to

civil or criminal investigations in the U.S and in other jurisdictions could lead to substantial civil or criminal

monetary and non-monetary penalties against us or our subsidiaries and could damage our reputation

significant fluctuation between the U.S Dollar and other currencies could adversely impact our operating

income

Although the Companys financial results are reported in U.S Dollars significant portion of our sales and

operating costs are realized in other currencies with the largest concentration of foreign sales occurring in Europe

The Companys profitability is affected by movements of the U.S Dollar against the Euro and other foreign

currencies in which we generate revenues and incur expenses Significant long-term fluctuations in relative currency

values in particular an increase in the value of the U.S Dollar against foreign currencies could have an adverse

effect on our profitability and financial condition

Diminished credit availability could adversely impact our ability to readily obtain financing or to obtain cost-

effective financing

The Company may utilize the commercial paper
markets for portion of its short-term liquidity needs If conditions

in the financial markets decline there is no assurance that the commercial paper markets will remain available to us

or that the lenders participating in our revolving and long-term credit facilities will be able to provide financing in

accordance with the terms of our credit agreements failure of one or more of the syndicate members in our credit

facilities could reduce the availability of credit and adversely affect our liquidity If we determine that it is

appropriate or necessary to raise capital in the future funds may not be available on cost-effective terms

Raw material price increases and supply shortages could adversely affect results

The supply of raw materials to the Company and to its component parts suppliers could be interrupted for variety

of reasons including availability and pricing Prices for raw materials necessary
for production have fluctuated

significantly in the past and significant increases could adversely affect the Companys results of operations and

profit margins Due to pricing pressure or other factors the Company may not be able to pass along increased raw

material and components parts prices to its customers in the form of price increases or its ability to do so could be

delayed Consequently its results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected

If the Company is unable to successfully introduce new products or adequately protect its intellectual

property its future growth may be adversely affected

The Companys ability to develop new products based on innovation can affect its competitive position and often

requires the investment of significant resources Difficulties or delays in research development or production of new

products and services or failure to gain market acceptance of new products and technologies may reduce future

revenues and adversely aflØct the Companys competitive position

Protecting the Companys intellectual property is critical to its innovation efforts The Company owns number of

patents trademarks and licenses related to its products and has exclusive and non-exclusive rights under patents

owned by others The Companys intellectual property may be challenged or infringed upon by third parties

particularly in countries where property rights are not highly developed or protected or the Company may be unable

to maintain renew or enter into new license agreements with third-party owners of intellectual property on

reasonable terms Unauthorized use of the Companys intellectual property rights or inability to preserve existing

intellectual property rights could adversely impact the Companys competitive position and results of operations



An unfavorable environment for making acquisitions may adversely affect the Companys growth rate

Suitable acquisitions can be difficult to complete due to high valuations for attractive acquisitions competition

among prospective buyers the need for antitrust or other regulatory approval and the availability of affordable

financing Changes in regulatory or accounting requirements or instability in the credit markets could adversely

impact our ability to consummate acquisitions Our ability to grow through acquisitions depends on our ability to

identify and successfully complete suitable acquisitions at appropriate prices There can be no assurance that the

Company will be able to find attractive businesses to purchase or that it will be able to acquire such businesses on

acceptable terms If the Company is unsuccessful in its efforts its growth rate could be adversely affected

Unfavorable tax law changes and tax authority rulings may adversely affect results

The Company is subject to income taxes in the United States and in various foreign jurisdictions Domestic and

international tax liabilities are based on the income and
expenses in various tax jurisdictions The Companys

effective tax rate could be adversely affected by changes in the mix of earnings among countries with differing

statutory tax rates changes in the valuation allowance of deferred tax assets or tax laws The amount of income taxes

and other taxes are subject to ongoing audits by U.S federal state and local tax authorities and by non-U.S

authorities If these audits result in assessments different from amounts recorded future financial results may include

unfavorable tax adjustments

Our defined benefit pension plans are subject to financial market risks that could adversely affect our results

of operations and cash flows

The performance of the financial markets and interest rates impact our funding obligations under our defined benefit

pension plans Significant changes in market interest rates decreases in the fair value of plan assets and investment

losses on plan assets may increase our funding obligations and adversely impact our results of operations and cash

flows

Potential adverse outcome in legal proceedings may adversely affect results

The Companys businesses
expose

it to potential toxic tort and other types of product liability claims that are

inherent in the design manufacture and sale of its products and the products of third-party vendors The Company
currently maintains insurance programs consisting of self insurance up to certain limits and excess insurance

coverage for claims over established limits There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain

insurance on acceptable terms or that its insurance programs will provide adequate protection against actual losses

In addition the Company is subject to the risk that one or more of its insurers may become insolvent and become

unable to pay claims that may be made in the future Even if it maintains adequate insurance programs successful

claims could have material adverse effect on the Companys financial condition liquidity and results of operations

and on its ability to obtain suitable adequate or cost-effective insurance in the future

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of words such as believe

expect plans strategy prospects estimate project target anticipate guidance forecast and

other similarwords including without limitation statements regarding the expected acquisition or disposition of

businesses the availability of raw materials and energy the expiration of any one of the Companys patents the cost

of compliance with environmental regulations the continued growth in North American and Asia Pacific markets

and slower growth in European markets in 2012 the adequacy of internally generated funds and credit facilities the

meeting of dividend payout objectives the ability to fund debt service obligations the likelihood of future goodwill

or intangible asset impairment charges the Companys portion of future benefit payments related to pension and

postretirement benefits the availability of additional financing the outcome of outstanding legal proceedings the

impact of adopting new accounting pronouncements and the estimated timing and amount related to the resolution of

tax matters These statements are subject to certain risks uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual

results to differ materially from those anticipated Important risks that may influence future results include those

risks described above These risks are not all inclusive and given these and other possible risks and uncertainties

investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as prediction of actual results

Any forward-looking statements made by ITW speak only as of the date on which they are made ITW is under no

obligation to and expressly disclaims any obligation to update or alter its forward-looking statements whether as

result of new information subsequent events or otherwise

ITW practices fair disclosure for all interested parties Investors should be aware that while ITW regularly

communicates with securities analysts and other investment professionals it is against ITWs policy to disclose to

them any material non-public information or other confidential commercial information Shareholders should not

assume that ITW
agrees

with any statement or report issued by any analyst irrespective of the content of the

statement or report



ITEM lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

ITEM Properties

As of December 31 2011 the Company operated the following plants and office facilities excluding regional sales

offices and warehouse facilities

Number
Of

Floor Space

Properties Owned Leased Total

In millions of square feet

Transportation 99 4.0 2.3 6.3

Power Systems Electronics 110 5.5 2.0 7.5

Industrial Packaging 134 6.4 4.2 10.6

Food Equipment 48 3.7 0.7 4.4

Construction Products 94 2.9 1.5 4.4

PolymersFluids 93 3.5 1.6 5.1

Decorative Surfaces 4.1 4.1

All Other 193 5.1 2.9 8.0

Corporate
43 4.3 0.2 4.5

Total 823 39 54

The principal plants and office facilities outside of the U.S are in Australia Belgium Brazil Canada China Czech

Republic Denmark France Germany Ireland Italy Netherlands Spain Switzerland and the United Kingdom

The Companys properties are primarily of steel brick or concrete construction and are maintained in good operating

condition Productive capacity in general currently exceeds operating levels Capacity levels are somewhat flexible

based on the number of shifts operated and on the number of overtime hours worked The Company adds productive

capacity from time to time as required by increased demand Additions to capacity can be made within reasonable

period of time due to the nature of the businesses

ITEM Legal Proceedings

Not applicable

ITEM Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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$49.92

59.27

58.79

56.36

$53.89

47.67

52.72

50.15

$39.12

40.82

52.09

52.42

$45.57

40.33

41.05

41.94

Dividends

Declared

Per Share

$0.36

0.36

0.34

0.34

$0.34

0.34

0.31

0.31

The approximate number of holders of record of common stock as of January 31 2012 was 9459 This number does

not include beneficial owners of the Companys securities held in the name of nominees

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

-o- Illinois Tool Works Inc SP 500 ---e--- SP Industrial Conglomerates SP Industrial Machinery

PART II

ITEM Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Common Stock Price and Dividend DataThe common stock of Illinois Tool Works Inc was listed on the New
York Stock Exchange for 2011 and 2010 Quarterly market price and dividend data for 2011 and 2010 were as

shown below

Market Price

Per Share

High low

2011

Fourth quarter

Third quarter

Second quarter

First quarter

2010

Fourth quarter

Third quarter

Second quarter

First quarter
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12/06

___-fr

12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11

$100 invested on 12/31/06 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends

Fiscal year ending December31
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ITEM Selected Financial Data

In Thousands except per share amounts 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Operating revenues $17786583 $15415692 $13572996 $16544281 $15549806

Income from continuing

operations 2017014 1452438 968638 1623963 1764678

Income from continuing

operations per common share

Basic 4.10 2.90 1.94 3.13 3.20

Diluted 4.08 2.89 1.93 3.12 3.17

Total assets at year-end 17983514 16412311 15811432 15203551 15525862

Long-term debt at year-end 3488198 2542087 2861304 1247883 1888839

Cash dividends declared per

common share 1.40 1.30 1.24 1.18 0.98

Certain reclassifications of prior years data have been made to conform to current year reporting including the

elimination of the one month lag for the reporting of the Companys international operations outside of North

America fiscal years
2010 and 2009 only and discontinued operations as discussed below

Prior to 2011 the Companys international operations outside of North America had fiscal reporting period that

began on December and ended on November 30 Effective January 2011 the Company eliminated the one

month lag for the reporting of its international operations outside of North America As result the Company is now

reporting both North American and international results on calendar year
basis The Company determined that the

elimination of the one month reporting lag was preferable because the same period-end reporting date improves

overall financial reporting as the impact of current events economic conditions and global trends are consistently

reflected in the financial statements of the North American and international business units The Company has

applied this change in accounting principle retrospectively to fiscal periods 2010 and 2009 Refer to the International

Reporting Lag note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for discussion of this change in

accounting principle

The Company periodically reviews its operations for businesses that may no longer be aligned with its long-term

objectives For businesses reported as discontinued operations in the statement of income all related prior period

income statement information has been restated to conform to the current year reporting of these businesses Income

loss from discontinued operations was $54370000 $50514000 $4059000 $l04960000 and $105184000

in the years 20112010 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Refer to the Discontinued Operations note in Item

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for discussion of the Companys discontinued operations

On January 2009 the Company adopted new accounting guidance related to business combinations The new

accounting guidance requires an entity to recognize assets acquired liabilities assumed contractual contingencies

and contingent consideration at their fair value on the acquisition date This new guidance also requires prospectively

that acquisition-related costs be expensed as incurred restructuring costs generally be recognized as post-

acquisition expenses and changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties after

the measurement period impact income tax expense Refer to the Acquisitions note in Item Financial Statements

and Supplementary Data for discussion of this change in accounting principle

On January 2009 the Company adopted new accounting guidance on fair value measurements for all nonfinancial

assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on nonrecurring basis The new

accounting guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants and provides guidance for measuring fair values and

the necessary disclosures Refer to the Goodwill and Intangible Assets note in Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data for discussion of this change in accounting principle

On January 2008 the Company adopted new accounting guidance related to defined benefit plans which

required the Company to change its measurement date to correspond with the Companys fiscal year-end The

Company previously used September 30 measurement date As allowed under the provisions of this new guidance

the Company elected to remeasure its plan assets and benefit obligation as of the beginning of the fiscal year

Upon adoption the Company recorded an after-tax charge of $12788000 to beginning retained earnings and an

after-tax gain to accumulated other comprehensive income of $3573000 related to the three months ended

December 31 2007

Information on the comparability of results is included in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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ITEM Managements Discussion andAnalysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

INTRODUCTION

Illinois Tool Works Inc the Company or JTW is multinational manufacturer of diversified
range of

industrial products and equipment with operations in 58 countries These businesses are internally reported as 52

operating segments to senior management The Companys 52 operating segments have been aggregated into the

following eight external reportable segments Transportation Power Systems Electronics Industrial Packaging

Food Equipment Construction Products Polymers Fluids Decorative Surfaces and All Other

Due to the large number of diverse businesses and the Companys decentralized operating style the Company does

not require its businesses to provide detailed information on operating results Instead the Companys corporate

management collects data on several key measurements operating revenues operating income operating margins

overhead costs number of months on hand in inventory days sales outstanding in accounts receivable past due

receivables and return on invested capital These key measures are monitored by management and significant

changes in operating results versus current trends in end markets and variances from forecasts are discussed with

operating unit management

The results of each segment are analyzed by identifying the effects of changes in the results of the base businesses

newly acquired companies restructuring costs goodwill and intangible asset impairment charges and currency

translation on the operating revenues and operating income of each segment Base businesses are those businesses

that have been included in the Companys results of operations for more than 12 months The changes to base

business operating income include the estimated effects of both operating leverage and changes in variable margins

and overhead costs Operating leverage is the estimated effect of the base business revenue changes on operating

income assuming variable margins remain the same as the prior period As manufacturing and administrative

overhead costs usually do not significantly change as result of revenues increasing or decreasing the percentage

change in operating income due to operating leverage is usually more than the percentage change in the base

business revenues

key element of the Companys business strategy is its continuous 80/20 business process for both existing

businesses and new acquisitions The basic concept of this 80/20 business
process is to focus on what is most

important the 20% of the items which account for 80% of the value and to spend less time and resources on the

less important the 80% of the items which account for 20% of the value The Companys operations use this 80/20

business process to simplify and focus on the key parts of their business and as result reduce complexity that

often disguises what is truly important The Companys operations utilize the 80/20 process in various aspects of

their businesses Common applications of the 80/20 business process include

Simplifying product lines by reducing the number of products offered by combining the features of similar

products outsourcing products or as last resort eliminating low-value products

Segmenting the customer base by focusing on the 80/20 customers separately and finding alternative ways to

serve the 20/80 customers

Simplifying the supplier base by partnering with 80/20 suppliers and reducing the number of 20/80 suppliers

Designing business
processes systems and measurements around the 80/20 activities

The result of the application of this 80/20 business
process is that the Company has over time improved its long-term

operating and financial performance These 80/20 efforts can result in restructuring projects that reduce costs and

improve margins Corporate management works closely with those businesses that have operating results below

expectations to help those businesses better apply this 80/20 business
process

and improve their results
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INTERNATIONAL REPORTING CHANGE

Effective January 2011 the Company eliminated the one month lag for the reporting of its international operations

outside of North America As result the Company now reports both North American and international results on

calendar year basis Prior to this the international fiscal reporting period began on December 1St and ended on

November 30th The Company has applied this change in accounting principle retrospectively to all prior period

financial statements presented Refer to the International Reporting Lag note in Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data for discussion of the international reporting change

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company periodically reviews its operations for businesses that may no longer be aligned with its long-term

objectives For businesses reported as discontinued operations in the statement of income all related prior period

income statement information has been restated to conform to the current year reporting of these businesses Refer

to the Discontinued Operations note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for discussion of the

Companys discontinued operations

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Companys consolidated results of operations for 201 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows

2010 2009

$15415692 $13572996

2254017 1382963

In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

0/ Point Increase Point Increase

0/ Increase Decrease Decrease Increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating

Revenues Income Margins Revenues Income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage 7.5% 21.0%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs

Acquisitions and divestitures

Restructuring costs 0.6

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles
7.5

Translation 3.1 3.4

Other

Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 15.4% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to higher base revenues revenues from acquisitions

and the favorable effect of currency translation Base revenues increased 7.5% in 2011 versus 2010 as worldwide

economic conditions strengthened However European economic conditions slowed in the second half of the year

North American and international base revenues increased 9.0% and 5.7% respectively in 2011 versus 2010 Base

revenues in Europe and China increased 5.6% and 14.2% respectively in 2011 versus 2010 End markets associated

with welding transportation and test and measurement businesses showed strength in 2011 In 2012 the company

anticipates continued growth in North American and Asia Pacific markets with European markets expected to be

relatively flat as compared to 2011

Revenues increased 13.6% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to higher base revenues and revenues from

acquisitions Base revenues increased 10.1% in 2010 versus 2009 as the Company saw improvement in

macroeconomic indices across many geographies as worldwide end markets began to recover from the global

recession North American and international base revenues increased 11.2% and 9.l% respectively in 2010 versus

2009 End markets associated with transportation welding industrial packaging PC board fabrication and

electronics showed improvement in 2010

Dollars In Thousands 2011

Operating revenues $17786583

Operating income 2731008

Margin% 15.4% 14.6% 10.2%

10.1% 40.7%

4.9

7.5 16.1

4.8 2.3

1.9%

0.7

1.2

0.4

0.1

10.1

3.2

2.4

43.1

2.2

8.7

2.8%

0.2

3.0

0.2

0.8

0.7

0.1

4.4%15.4% 21.2%

0.1

0.8%

0.4 1.5

0.1

13.6% 63.0%
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Operating Income

Operating income increased 21.2% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the increase in base revenues the favorable

effect of currency translation and income from acquisitions Base margins increased 120 basis points primarily due

to the positive leverage effect of the increase in base revenues partially offset by the negative impact of selling price

versus material cost comparisons Additionally acquisitions and divestitures diluted margins by 40 basis points

primarily due to amortization
expense related to intangible assets

Operating income increased 63.0% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to the increase in base revenues lower

restructuring expenses and 2009 goodwill and intangible asset impairment charges Base margins increased 300

basis points primarily due to the positive leverage effect of the increase in base revenues Additionally benefits from

restructuring projects were partially offset by unfavorable selling price versus material cost comparisons Lower

restructuring expenses in 2010 versus 2009 reflect the Companys 2009 efforts to reduce costs in response to weak

economic conditions In 2009 the Company recorded impairment charges of $90.0 million and $15.6 million against

goodwill and intangibles respectively compared to $1.0 million in intangible asset impairment charges in 2010

TRANSPORTATION

Businesses in this segment produce components fasteners fluids and polymers as well as truck remanufacturing

and related parts and service

In the Transportation segment products and services include

plastic and metal components fasteners and assemblies for automobiles and light trucks

fluids polymers and other supplies for auto aftermarket maintenance and appearance

fillers and putties for auto body repair

polyester coatings and patch and repair products for the marine industry and

truck remanufacturing and related parts and service

In 2011 this segment primarily served the automotive original equipment manufacturers and tiers 56% and

automotive aftermarket 31 markets

The results of operations for the Transportation segment for 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $3108349 $2522226 $2092249

Operating income 474592 369454 155373

Margin% 15.3% 14.6% 7.4%

In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

Point Increase Point Increase

Increase Decrease Decrease Increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenues Income Margins Revenues Income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage 10.1% 25.1% 2.0% 18.0% 85.6% 4.2%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs 7.0 0.9 19.0 1.2

10.1 18.1 1.1 18.0 104.6 5.4

Acquisitions and divestitures 10.6 8.6 0.3 2.5 7.4 0.2

Restructuring costs 1.3 0.2 16.1 1.0

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles 9.1 0.6

Translation 2.6 3.1 0.1 0.1 0.7

Other 0.1 0.1

23.2% 28.5% 0.7% 20.6% 137.8% 7.2%
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Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 23.2% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the increase in base business revenues from

acquisitions and the favorable effect of currency translation The increase in acquisition revenue was primarily due

to the purchase of North American automotive aftermarket business in the first quarter of 2011 Worldwide

automotive base revenues increased 10.0% International automotive base revenues increased 10.2% primarily due

to growth in European auto builds of 5% and increased product penetration Additionally Asian automotive base

revenues increased 20.8% primarily due to improved product penetration and higher auto builds in China and India

of 2% and 10% respectively North American automotive base revenues increased 9.8% in 2011 versus 2010

primarily due to an increase in auto builds of 10% The truck remanufacturing and related parts and service business

increased 19.7% over the prior year due to increased demand in North America and Canada related to oil and gas

exploration Automotive aftermarket base business increased 4.5% over the prior year with growth in both

transportation materials and consumer-based businesses

Revenues increased 20.6% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to the increase in base revenues and revenues from

acquisitions The increase in acquisition revenue was primarily due to the purchase of North American automotive

aftermarket business in the second quarter of 2010 Worldwide automotive base revenues increased 28.4% North

American automotive base revenues increased 37.8% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to an increase in auto builds

of approximately 39% International automotive base revenues increased 21.2% primarily due to an increase in

European auto builds of approximately 16% and increased product penetration The automotive aftermarket

businesses which were less impacted in 2009 by the economic downturn were virtually flat over the prior year Base

revenues for the truck remanufacturing and related parts and service business declined 5.3% over the prior year

Operating Income

Operating income increased 28.5% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the increase in base revenues income from

acquisitions and the favorable effect of currency translation Base margins increased 110 basis points primarily due

to the positive leverage effect of the increase in base revenues described above partially offset by the negative

impact of selling price versus material cost comparisons In addition acquisitions diluted total operating margins by

30 basis points

Operating income increased 137.8% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to the increase in base revenues lower

restructuring expenses 2009 goodwill and intangible asset impairment charges and income from acquisitions Base

margins increased 540 basis points primarily due to the positive leverage effect of the increase in base revenues

described above benefits from restructuring projects and favorable inventory obsolescence expense comparisons

During the third quarter of 2009 $12.0 million goodwill impairment charge was recorded in the truck

remanufacturing and related parts and service business

POWER SYSTEMS ELECTRONICS

Businesses in this segment produce equipment and consumables associated with specialty power conversion

metallurgy and electronics

In the Power Systems Electronics segment products include

arc welding equipment

metal arc welding consumables and related accessories

metal solder materials for PC board fabrication

equipment and services for microelectronics assembly

electronic components and component packaging

static and contamination control equipment

airport ground support equipment and

pressure
sensitive adhesives and components for telecommunications electronics medical and transportation

applications

In 2011 this segment primarily served the general industrial 43% electronics 17% construction 4% and

automotive original equipment manufacturers 4% markets
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The results of operations for the Power Systems Electronics segment for 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $2872161 $2409204 $2004402

Operating income 580674 469244 198673

Margin% 20.2% 19.5% 9.9%

In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

0/ Point Increase Point Increase

Increase Decrease Decrease Increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenues Income Margins Revenues Income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage 12.5% 26.2% 2.4% 18.5% 74.8% 4.7%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs 2.8 0.5 4.6 OA

12.5 23.4 1.9 18.5 79.4 5.1

Acquisitions and divestitures 4.3 1.1 1.0 1.1 0.8 0.1
Restructuring costs 0.7 0.1 10.3 0.9

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles 44.7 3.7

Translation 2.4 2.2 0.1 0.6 1.0

Other

19.2% 23.8% 0.7% 20.2% 136.2% 9.6%

Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 19.2% in 2011 versus 2010 due to growth in base business revenues from acquisitions and the

favorable effect of currency translation Worldwide welding base business revenues increased 1.0% in 2011 versus 2010

North American welding base business revenues increased 24.6% due to improvements in number of industrial-based

end markets In particular increased sales in the oil and gas end market as well as sales to heavy equipment OEMs and

other manufacturers helped drive base revenues Base business revenues for the international welding businesses increased

12.3% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to growth in European and Asian oil and gas and infrastructure-related end

markets Base revenues for the electronics businesses increased 1.7% mainly due to base growth of 6.3% in the PC board

fabrication businesses though end markets significantly slowed for these businesses in the fourth quarter of 2011 The

other electronics businesses were virtually flat due to weakening end markets and softer consumer demand Acquisition

revenue was primarily due to the purchase of thermal processing and environmental equipment manufacturer in the third

quarter of 2011 and an automated welding systems business in the fourth quarter of 2010

Revenues increased 20.2% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to growth in base business Worldwide welding base

revenues increased 11.0% North American welding base business revenues increased 16.0% as end markets began to

experience recovery particularly for heavy equipment OEMs and general manufacturers Base business revenues for the

international welding businesses increased 0.6% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to increased oil and gas end market

activity partially offset by declines in Asian shipyard activity Base revenues for the electronics businesses increased

34.3% due to growth in the PC board fabrication businesses of7l.0% and other electronics businesses of 20.2% as

demand for consumer electronics and capital equipment increased significantly

Operating Income

Operating income increased 23.8% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the favorable leverage effect of the growth in base

revenues and the favorable impact of currency translation Base margins increased 190 basis points primarily due to the

favorable leverage effect of the growth in base revenues partially offset by the negative impact of selling price versus

material cost comparisons Acquisitions diluted total operating margins by 100 basis points versus the prior year

Operating income increased 136.2% in 2010 versus 2009 mainly due to the favorable leverage effect of the growth in base

revenues 2009 impairment charges and lower restructuring expenses During the first quarter of 2009 $60.0 million

goodwill impairment charge was recorded against the pressure sensitive adhesives business and $24.7 million of goodwill

and intangible asset impairment charges were recorded against the PC Board fabrication and welding accessories

businesses Base margins increased 510 basis points in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to the favorable leverage effect of

the growth in base revenues the cumulative benefits of restructuring projects and favorable product mix partially offset by

unfavorable selling price versus material cost comparisons
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INDUSTRIAL PACKAGING

Businesses in this segment produce steel plastic and
paper products and equipment used for bundling shipping and

protecting goods in transit

In the Industrial Packaging segment products include

steel and plastic strapping and related tools and equipment

plastic stretch film and related equipment

paper
and plastic products that protect goods in transit and

metal jacketing and other insulation products

In 2011 this segment primarily served the general industrial 26% primary metals 21% food and beverage

13%and construction 8% markets

The results of operations for the Industrial Packaging segment for 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $2612108 $2272059 $1940887

Operating income 273342 231303 95128

Margin% 10.5% 10.2% 4.9%

In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

Point Increase Point Increase

Increase Decrease Decrease Increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating

Revenues Income Margins Revenues Income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage
8.4% 31.6% 2.2% 13.9% 110.0% 4.1%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs 18.8 1.8 5.3 0.2

8.4 12.8 0.4 13.9 104.7 3.9

Acquisitions and divestitures 3.0 2.9 2.3 3.3 0.1

Restructuring costs 2.1 0.2 31.3 1.3

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles 0.8

Translation 3.6 4.6 0.1 0.9 4.6 0.1

Other 0..1 0.1

15.0% 18.2% 0.3% 17.1% 143.2% 5.3%

Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 15.0% in 2011 versus 2010 due to the increase in base revenues the favorable effect of currency

translation and revenues from acquisitions Base revenues for the North American strapping and equipment

businesses increased 12.2% in 2011 largely due to higher steel and plastic strapping prices and increased equipment

sales Base revenues for international strapping and equipment businesses grew 7.2% primarily due to higher

strapping prices and higher equipment sales Base revenues for stretch packaging worldwide increased 10.2% in

2011 versus 2010 and worldwide protective packaging grew 7.1% over the prior period The increase in acquisition

revenue is primarily due to the purchase of protective packaging business in the second quarter of 2011

Revenues increased 17.1% in 2010 versus 2009 due to the increase in base revenues revenues from acquisitions and

the favorable effect of currency translation Base revenues increased 23.1% for the North American strapping and

equipment businesses in 2010 largely due to an increase in steel and plastic strap volume driven by improved industrial

production demand in key industries including primary metals and general industrial Base revenues for the

international strapping and equipment businesses increased 10.1% while worldwide protective packaging increased

16.6% and worldwide stretch packaging increased 12.3% over the prior period Acquisition revenue increased

primarily due to the purchase of North American protective packaging business in the fourth quarter of 2009
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Operating Income

Operating income increased 18.2% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the increase in base revenues the favorable

impact of currency translation and income from acquisitions partially offset by higher restructuring expenses Base

operating margins increased 40 basis points primarily due to leverage from the increase in base revenues partially

offset by unfavorable selling price versus material cost comparisons

Operating income increased 143.2% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to the increase in base revenues and lower

restructuring expenses Base operating margins increased 390 basis points primarily driven by leverage from the

increase in base revenues and restructuring benefits partially offset by unfavorable selling price versus material cost

comparisons Lower restructuring expenses compared to 2009 increased total operating margins by 130 basis points

FOOD EQUIPMENT

Businesses in this segment produce commercial food equipment and related service

In the Food Equipment segment products and services include

warewashing equipment

cooking equipment including ovens ranges and broilers

refrigeration equipment including refrigerators freezers and prep tables

food processing equipment including slicers mixers and scales

kitchen exhaust ventilation and pollution control systems and

food equipment service maintenance and repair

In 2011 this segment primarily served the food institutional/restaurant 43% service 36% and food retail

16% markets

The results of operations for the Food Equipment segment for 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

DolJars In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $1982187 $1857051 $1862950

Operating income 303771 255060 255891

Margin% 15.3% 13.7% 13.7%

In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

Point increase Point Increase

Increase Decrease Decrease %increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenues Income Margins Revenues income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage 2.8% 8.9% 0.8% 0.1% 0.1%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs 10.6 1.4 4.7 0.7
2.8 19.5 2.2 4.6 0.6

Acquisitionsanddivcstitures 1.2 0.4 0.2 0.7 0.2 0.1

Restructuring costs 3.0 0.4 4.4 0.6

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles

Translation 2.7 3.0 1.1 0.4 0.1

Other 01 0.1

6.7% 19.1% 1.6% 0.3% 0.3%
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Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 6.7% in 2011 versus 2010 due to the growth in base business the favorable effect of currency

translation and revenues from acquisitions North American food equipment base revenues increased 3.9% in 2011

versus 2010 as equipment revenues increased 4.6% and service revenues grew 2.7% Equipment revenues increased

primarily due to better but still modest growth in the casual dining restaurant category partially offset by weakness

in institutional categories where government budgets were constrained International base revenues increased 1.7%

for the period as equipment revenues increased 1.0% and service revenues increased 3.3% Growth in Asian and

Latin American revenues was partially offset by lower European sales in 2011 versus 2010 The acquired revenues

were attributable to the acquisition of European food equipment business in the third quarter of 2010

Revenues decreased 0.3% in 2010 versus 2009 as the unfavorable effect of currency translation was partially offset

by acquisition revenues North American base revenues declined 1.4% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to declines

in equipment sales for end markets including the lodging and casino markets North American base revenues in the

service portion of the business increased 1.5% as customers continued to maintain existing equipment International

base revenues increased 2.4% for the period largely due to increased Asian and Latin American revenue offset by

lower European equipment sales in 2010 versus 2009 The acquired revenues were attributable to the acquisition of

European food equipment business in the third quarter of 2010

Operating Income

Operating income increased 19.1% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the increase in base revenues and lower

operating expenses Base business margins increased 220 basis points primarily due to the positive leverage effect of

the increase in base revenues lower operating expenses and adjustments related to European business in 2010

Higher restructuring expenses
in 2011 versus 2010 decreased total operating margins by 40 basis points

Operating income decreased 0.3% in 2010 versus 2009 Base business margins decreased 60 basis points primarily

due to higher overhead expenses
and adjustments related to European business in 2010 partially offset by

favorable selling price versus material cost comparisons and benefits from restructuring Lower restructuring

expenses
in 2010 versus 2009 increased total operating margins by 60 basis points

CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS

Businesses in this segment produce tools fasteners and other products for construction applications

In the Construction Products segment products include

fasteners and related fastening tools for wood and metal applications

anchors fasteners and related tools for concrete applications

metal plate truss components and related equipment and software and

packaged hardware fasteners anchors and other products for retail

In 2011 this segment primarily served the residential construction 44% renovation construction 26% and

commercial construction 22%markets

The results of operations for the Construction Products segment for 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $1958370 $1753485 $1547365

Operating income 225448 192070 104795

Margin% 11.5% 11.0% 6.8%
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In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

Point increase Point Increase

0/ Increase Decrease Decrease Increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating

Revenues Income Margins Revenues Income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage 2.7% 10.7% 0.9% 4.1% 24.4% 1.3%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs 7.4 0.8 58 3.3

2.7 3.3 0.1 4.1 75.2 4.6

Acquisitions and divestitures 3.0 0.1 0.3 5.4 0.5 0.6

Restructuring costs 4.4 0.5 4.1 0.3

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles

Translation 6.0 9.5 0.3 3.8 12.6 0.4

Other 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

11.7% 17.4% 0.5% 13.3% 83.3% 4.2%

Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 11.7% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the favorable effect of currency translation

revenues from acquisitions and an increase in base revenues European base revenues increased 6.9% due to

improved conditions in commercial construction in the first half of the year however the rate of growth moderated

in the second half of the year compared to early 2011 North American base revenues increased 2.3% primarily due

to price increases implemented to offset higher steel prices partially offset by the one-time licensing agreement
settlement in the commercial construction business that positively impacted revenues in 2010 In North America
renovation base revenue growth was 5.5% residential base revenue growth was 2.7% and commercial construction

base revenue declined 3.0% North American base revenue was impacted by 1% growth in remodeling expenditures

3% annualized growth in U.S housing starts as well as 2% decline in commercial construction square footage

activity Base revenues for the Asia-Pacific region declined 1.8% as market conditions in the Australian residential

construction market progressively softened throughout the year Acquisition revenue was primarily the result of the

purchase of European retail distribution business in the second quarter of 2010 and North American fastener

business in the second quarter of 2011

Revenues increased 13.3% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to revenues from acquisitions an increase in base

revenues and the favorable effect of currency translation European base revenues increased 7.5% in 2010 primarily

due to improved market conditions Base revenues for the Asia-Pacific region increased 2.4% as market conditions

in the Australian residential construction market improved North American base revenues increased 1.8% primarily

due to modest inventory restocking and one-time licensing agreement settlement in the second quarter of 2010 in

the commercial construction business The North American base business was negatively impacted by an 8% decline

in U.S housing starts on an annualized basis and an 18% decline in commercial construction square footage activity

Acquisition revenue was primarily the result of the purchase of European retail distribution business in the second

quarter of 2010

Operating Income

Operating income increased 17.4% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to positive leverage from the increase in base

revenues described above the favorable effect of currency translation and lower restructuring expenses Base

margins increased 10 basis points versus the prior year primarily due to the favorable leverage effect of the increase

in base revenues partially offset by one-time licensing agreement settlement in the commercial construction

business that favorably affected margins in 2010 and the negative impact of selling price versus material cost

comparisons

Operating income increased 83.3% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to positive leverage from the increase in base

revenues described above lower operating expenses
and the favorable effect of currency translation partially offset

by higher restructuring expenses Base margins increased 460 basis points versus the prior year primarily due to the

favorable leverage effect of the increase in base revenues favorable selling price versus material cost comparisons
favorable inventory obsolescence expense comparisons benefits from restructuring projects and favorable one
time licensing agreement settlement in the second quarter of 2010 in the commercial construction business
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POLYMERS FLUIDS

Businesses in this segment produce adhesives sealants lubrication and cutting fluids and hygiene products

In the Polymers Fluids segment products include

adhesives for industrial construction and consumer purposes

chemical fluids which clean or add lubrication to machines

epoxy and resin-based coating products for industrial applications and

hand wipes and cleaners for industrial applications

In 2011 this segment primarily served the general industrial 31% construction 15% MRO 17%and

automotive aftermarket 7% markets

The results of operations for the Polymers Fluids segment for 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $1364004 $1106025 $980305

Operating income 208873 188696 150065

Margin% 15.3% 17.1% 15.3%

In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

Point Increase Point Increase

Increase Decrease Decrease Increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating

Revenues Income Margins Revenues Income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage 4.5% 11.6% 1.2% 6.0% 17.3% 1.6%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs 8.4 1.4 2.0 0.3

4.5 3.2 0.2 6.0 15.3 1.3

Acquisitions and divestitures 15.1 8.0 0.9 6.4 3.8 0.5

Restructuring costs 4.2 0.7 5.4 0.8

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles

Translation 3.8 3.6 0.4 1.3 0.1

Other _PJ ii
23.3% 10.7% l.8% 12.8% 25.7% 1.8%

Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 23.3% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to revenues from acquisitions an increase in base

revenues and the favorable effect of currency translation Acquisition revenue was primarily the result of the

purchase of Latin American fluids business and European polymers business in the fourth quarter of 2010 End

market demand was stronger in North America and Asia Pacific but weaker in Europe Total base revenues for the

polymers businesses increased 4.3% while the fluids businesses increased 4.7% in 2011 versus 2010 North

American base revenues increased 6.3% and European base revenues were relatively flat while Asia-Pacific base

revenues increased 9.3% primarily due to growth in China

Revenues increased 12.8% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to an increase in base revenues and revenues from

acquisitions Acquisition revenue was primarily the result of the purchase of four Latin American adhesive

businesses in 2009 and Latin American polymers business in the third quarter of 2010 Total base revenues for the

polymers businesses and fluids businesses increased 5.2% and 7.9% respectively due to recovery in most of the

industrial based end markets served by the worldwide polymers and fluids businesses Growth in the emerging

markets of Brazil and China was particularly strong during 2010
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Operating Income

Operating income increased 10.7% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the increase in base revenues income from

acquisitions and the favorable effect of
currency translation partially offset by higher operating costs and

restructuring expenses Base margins declined 20 basis points versus last year primarily due to the negative impact

of selling price versus material cost comparisons and loss on an international polymers contract partially offset by

the positive leverage effect of the increase in base revenues

Operating income increased 25.7% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to the increase in base revenues described

above lower restructuring expenses and higher income from acquisitions Base margins increased 130 basis points

versus the prior year primarily due to the positive leverage effect of the increase in base revenues Lower

restructuring expenses in 2010 versus 2009 increased total operating margins by 80 basis points

DECORATIVE SURFACES

Businesses in this segment produce decorative surfacing materials for furniture office and retail space countertops

and other applications

In the Decorative Surfaces segment products include

decorative high-pressure laminate for furniture office and retail space and countertops and

high-pressure laminate worktops

In 2011 this segment primarily served the commercial construction 55% renovation construction 30% and

residential construction 14%markets

The results of operations for the Decorative Surfaces segment for 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Dollars In Thousands 2011 _2010 2009

Operating revenues $1083157 $987692 $971900

Operating income 132394 117333 113227

Margin% 12.2% 11.9% 11.7%

In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

Point Increase Point Increase

Increase Decrease Decrease Increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenues Income Margins Revenues Income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage 7.2% 24.7% 1.9% 2.4% 8.7% 0.7%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs 18.3 2.0 8.8 LO
7.2 6.4 0.1 2.4 0.1 0.3

Acquisitions and divestitures

Restructuring costs 4.6 0.5 3.2 0.4

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles

Translation 2.4 1.9 0.1 0.8 0.6 0.2

Other 0.1 01 0.1

9.7% 12.8% 0.3% 1.6% 3.6% 0.2%
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Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 9.7% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the increase in base revenues and the favorable

effect of currency translation Base revenues for the North American high-pressure laminate business increased

6.4% primarily due to new product introductions and improved product demand in the office furniture market

International base revenues increased 8.1% primarily due to growth in China and certain European end markets

Revenues increased 1.6% in 2010 versus 2009 due to the increase in base revenues partially offset by the

unfavorable effect of currency translation Base revenues increased 3.2% for the North American laminate business

primarily due to improvement in the commercial construction sector including office equipment International base

revenues increased 1.4% primarily due to improvements in Asian end markets partially offset by modest declines in

European end markets

Operating Income

Operating income increased 12.8% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the increase in base revenues described

above lower restructuring expenses and the favorable effect of currency translation partially offset by higher

operating costs Base margins decreased 10 basis points versus the prior year primarily due to unfavorable selling

price versus material cost comparisons and higher overhead costs partially offset by the positive leverage of the

increase in base revenues

Operating income increased 3.6% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to the increase in base revenues and lower

restructuring expenses partially offset by higher operating costs Base margins decreased 30 basis points versus the

prior year primarily due to unfavorable selling price versus material cost comparisons partially offset by the benefits

of restructuring projects and the positive leverage of the increase in base revenues

ALL OTHER

This segment includes all other operating segments

In the All Other segment products include

equipment and related software for testing and measuring of materials and structures

plastic reclosable packaging for consumer food storage

plastic consumables that multi-pack cans and bottles and related equipment

plastic fasteners and components for appliances furniture and industrial uses

metal fasteners and components for appliances and industrial applications

foil film and related equipment used to decorate consumer products

product coding and marking equipment and related consumables and

line integration conveyor systems and line automation for the food and beverage industries

In 2011 this segment primarily served the general industrial 22% food and beverage 1% consumer durables

15% food retail/service 6% and automotive original equipment manufacturers 4% markets

The results of operations for the All Other segment for 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $2889699 $2598475 $2238604

Operating income 531914 430857 309811

Margin% 18.4% 16.6% 13.8%
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In 2011 and 2010 the changes in revenues operating income and operating margins over the prior year were

primarily due to the following factors

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009

Point Increase Point Increase

Increase Decrease Decrease %Increase Decrease Decrease

Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenues Income Margins Revenues Income Margins

Base business

Revenue change/Operating

leverage 7.0% 18.9% 1.8% 9.7% 31.9% 2.8%

Changes in variable margins

and overhead costs 1.3 0.2 0.5
7.0 20.2 2.0 9.7 27.9 2.3

Acquisitionsanddivestitures 2.3 0.9 0.3 7.0 2.8 0.7

Restructuring costs 0.1 8.3 1.1

Impairment of goodwill and

intangibles 0.2 0.3

Translation 1.9 2.0 0.6 0.3 0.1

Other 0.1 0.1 0.1

11.2% 23.5% 1.8% 16.1% 39.1% 2.8%

Operating Revenues

Revenues increased 11.2% in 2011 versus 2010 due to an increase in base business revenues revenues from

acquisitions and the favorable effect of
currency translation Acquisition revenue was primarily due to the purchase

of test and measurement business in the fourth quarter of 2010 heat transfer business in the second quarter of

2011 and plastics and security business in the second quarter of 2010 Base business revenues for the test and

measurement businesses increased 15.7% due to increased equipment orders both internationally and in North

America Growing worldwide product regulatory standards contributed to growth in these businesses Base revenues

for the consumer packaging business increased 4.8% in 2011 versus 2010 due to growth in the beverage packaging

solutions decorating equipment and marking and labels businesses Base revenues fcr the industrial fasteners and

appliance businesses declined 0.7% due to prolonged construction-associated weakness in the appliance end market

partially offset by increased demand in the industrial fasteners end market

Revenues increased 16.1% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to an increase in base business revenues and revenues

from acquisitions The acquisition revenue was primarily due to the purchase of consumer packaging business in

the fourth quarter of 2009 Base business revenues increased 9.5% for the test and measurement businesses due to

increased demand for capital equipment particularly in the Asia-Pacific region Base revenues increased 8.2% in

2010 versus 2009 for the consumer packaging business due to improvement in decorating end markets Base

revenues for the industrial fasteners and appliance businesses improved 15.2% due to increased demand for domestic

appliances

Operating Income

Operating income increased 23.5% in 2011 versus 2010 primarily due to the growth in base revenues Base margins

increased 200 basis points primarily due to the positive leverage effect from the increase in base revenues and

benefits from past restructuring projects In addition acquisitions and divestitures diluted total operating margins by

30 basis points in 2011

Operating income increased 39.1% in 2010 versus 2009 primarily due to the growth in base revenues and lower

restructuring expenses Base margins increased 230 basis points primarily due to the positive leverage effect from

the increase in base revenues and benefits from past restructuring projects partially offset by unfavorable selling

price versus material cost comparisons In addition lower restructuring expenses increased total operating margins

by 110 basis points Acquisitions and divestitures diluted total operating margins by 70 basis points in 2010

AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amortization expense increased to $255.3 million in 2011 and $207.4 million in 2010 versus $197.5 million in

2009 due to intangible asset amortization for newly acquired businesses
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IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In 2011 the Company performed its annual goodwill and indefinite lived intangible asset impairment assessment

which resulted in no goodwill or other intangible asset impairment charges Total goodwill and other intangible asset

impairment charges by segment for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

In Thousands 2010 2009

Transportation
12347

Power Systems Electronics 85043

Industrial Packaging
386

Food Equipment 53

Polymers Fluids 4122

All Other 1006 3617

Total $1006 $105568

The 2009 charges were primarily due to goodwill impairment charges related to the pressure sensitive adhesives

reporting unit of $60.0 million the PC board fabrication reporting unit of $18.0 million and the truck

remanufacturing and related parts and service reporting unit of $12.0 million See the Goodwill and Intangible

Assets note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for further details of the impairment charges

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense
increased to $192.1 million in 2011 which includes interest expense on the 3.375% and 4.875%

notes issued in late August 2011 versus $175.2 million in 2010 Interest expense
increased to $175.2 million in 2010

versus $164.6 million in 2009 primarily due to interest on the 6.25% and 5.15% notes which were issued in March

2009 partially offset by lower interest related to the 5.75% notes which were repaid at maturity in March 2009 and

lower commercial paper borrowings The weighted-average interest rate on commercial paper was 0.1% in 2011

0.2% in 2010 and 0.3% in 2009

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE
Other income expense was income of $53.8 million in 2011 versus $10.0 million in 2010 This increase was

primarily due to higher interest income of $40.3 million versus $24.1 million in 2010 lower losses on foreign

currency
transactions of $4.3 million versus $16.7 million in 2010 and gains on disposal of operating affiliates of

$1.8 million versus losses of $8.0 million in 2010

Other income expense was income of $10.0 million in 2010 versus expense of $4.5 million in 2009 This increase

was primarily due to higher income from investments of $20.8 million versus $4.9 million in 2009

INCOME TAXES

The effective tax rate was 22.2% in 2011 30.5% in 2010 and 20.2% in 2009 The effective tax rate for 2011 was

favorably impacted by the discrete non-cash tax benefit of$ 165.9 million in the first quarter of 2011 related to the

decision in the Companys favor by the Federal Court of Australia Victoria with respect to significant portion of

the income tax deductions that had been challenged by the Australian Tax Office The effective tax rate for 2010 was

unfavorably impacted by the discrete tax charge of $21.9 million in the first quarter of 2010 related to the Patient

Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act The effective tax rate for

2009 was favorably impacted by discrete tax adjustments in the fourth quarter of $85.5 million related to global

legal structure reorganization and $77.5 million related to favorable settlement reached with the German tax

authorities In the above mentioned reorganization the Company reorganized its ownership structure in certain U.S

and foreign subsidiaries in the fourth quarter of 2009 and made an election regarding the U.S tax treatment of

foreign subsidiary The Company recorded reduction in tax expense primarily for the effect of the resulting foreign

tax credits Also during the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company finalized settlement with the German tax

authorities primarily regarding the treatment of an intercompany financing transaction which resulted in the reversal

of previously established tax reserves as reduction of tax expense

See the Income Taxes note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for further details on these

discrete tax adjustments and reconciliation of the U.S Federal statutory rate to the effective tax rate

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Income from continuing operations in 2011 of $2.0 billion $4.08 per diluted share was 38.9% higher than 2010

income of $1.5 billion $2.89 per diluted share Income from continuing operations in 2010 was 49.9% higher than

2009 income of $968.6 million $1.93 per
diluted share
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FOREIGN CURRENCY

The weakening of the U.S Dollar against foreign currencies in 2011 versus 2010 increased operating revenues by

approximately $460 million in 2011 and increased income from continuing operations by approximately 10 cents per

diluted share The weakening of the U.S Dollar against foreign currencies in 2010 versus 2009 increased operating

revenues by approximately $70 million in 2010 and increased income from continuing operations by approximately

cents per diluted share

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Income from discontinued operations was $54.4 million in 2011 versus $50.5 million in 2010 primarily due to

improved operating results in the held for sale finishing businesses partially offset by an after-tax loss on the sale of

discontinued operation in 2011 versus an after-tax gain in 2010 Income from discontinued operations was $50.5

million in 2010 versus $4.1 million in 2009 due to improved operating results in the held for sale finishing

businesses and an after-tax gain on the sale of discontinued operation in 2010 versus after-tax losses in 2009 See

the Discontinued Operations note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for discussion of the

Companys discontinued operations

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Companys primary sources of liquidity are free operating cash flows and short-term credit facilities

Management continues to believe that internally generated cash flows will be adequate to service debt to continue to

pay dividends to finance internal growth and to fund small to medium-sized acquisitions

The primary uses of liquidity are

dividend payments the Companys dividend payout guidelines are 30% to 45% of the
average

of the

last two years free operating cash flow

acquisitions and

any excess liquidity may be used for share repurchases

Cash Flow

The Company uses free operating cash flow to measure cash flow generated by operations that is available for

dividends acquisitions share repurchases and debt repayment The Company believes this measure is useful to

investors in evaluating our financial performance and measures our ability to generate cash internally to fund

Company initiatives Free operating cash flow is measurement that is not the same as net cash flow from operating

activities
per the statement of cash flows and may not be consistent with similarly titled measures used by other

companies

Summarized cash flow information for the three years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was as follows

In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Net cash provided by operating activities $1956008 $1488313 $2167552

Additions to plant and equipment 353408 287759 255739

Free operating cash flow $1602600 $1200554 $1911813

Cash dividends paid 680280 636200 619681

Acquisitions 1308164 497435 281404

Repurchases of common stock 950000 350000

Net proceeds repayments ofdebt 1147533 190085 742427

Other 243740 236433 128927

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

equivalents 63921 76934 87951

Net increase decrease in cash and equivalents 8492 5159799 485179
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On August 20 2007 the Companys Board of Directors authorized stock repurchase program which provides for

the buyback of up to $3.0 billion of the Companys common stock over an open-ended period of time the 2007

Program Under the 2007 Program the Company made repurchases of approximately 16.3 million shares of its

common stock at an average price of $53.51 and approximately 8.1 million shares of its common stock at an average

price of $43.29 during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively As of December 31 2011 there

were no authorized repurchases remaining under the 2007 Program

On May 2011 the Companys Board of Directors authorized new stock repurchase program which provides for

the buyback of up to an additional $4.0 billion of the Companys common stock over an open-ended period of time

the 2011 Program Through December 31 2011 the Company made repurchases of approximately 1.8 million

shares of its common stock at an average price of $43.20 As of December 31 2011 there was approximately $3.9

billion of authorized repurchases remaining under the 2011 Program

Return on Average Invested Capital

The Company uses return on average invested capital ROIC to measure the effectiveness of its operations use of

invested capital to generate profits The Company believes that ROTC is meaningful metric to investors in

evaluating the Companys financial performance and may be different than the method used by other companies to

calculate ROTC Invested capital represents the net assets of the Company excluding cash and cash equivalents and

outstanding debt which are excluded as they do not represent capital investment in the Companys operations

Average invested capital is calculated using balances at the start of the period and at the end of each quarter ROIC

for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was as follows

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating income 2731008 2254017 1382963

Taxes 22.2% 30.5% and 20.2% respectively 606284 687475 279359

Operating income after taxes 2124724 1566542 1103604

Invested Capital

Trade receivables 2818892 2581592 2349056

Inventories 1715859 1634856 1343002

Net plant and equipment 2025396 2066156 2097326

Investments 408906 440760 451069

Goodwill and intangible assets 7430979 6702834 6491902

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2132379 2140885 1969928

Net assets held for sale 279476

Other net 299321 31358 334124

Total invested capital $12846450 $1 1253955 $10428303

Average invested capital $12619928 $10735032 $10400945

Return on average
invested capital

16.8% 14.6% 10.6%

The 220 basis point increase in ROIC in 2011 versus 2010 was the result of after-tax operating income increasing

5.6% primarily due to an increase in base business and favorable tax rate partially offset by an increase in

average
invested capital

The 400 basis point increase in ROIC in 2010 versus 2009 was the result of after-tax operating income increasing

41.9% primarily due to an increase in base business partially offset by less favorable tax rate and slight increase

in average invested capital
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Working Capital

Net working capital at December 31 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows

Increase

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 Decrease

Current Assets

Cash and equivalents $1177875 $1186367 8492
Trade receivables 2818892 2581592 237300

Inventories 1715859 1634856 81003

Other 750396 567673 182723

Assets held for sale 386324 _______ 386324

6849346 5970488 878858

Current Liabilities

Short-term debt 502063 326236 175827

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2132379 2140885 8506
Other 235437 555731 320294
Liabilities held for sale 106848

_______
106848

2976727 3022852 46125
Net Working Capital $3872619 $2947636 $924983

Current Ratio 2.30 1.9

Cash and equivalents totaled approximately $1.2 billion as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 primarily

all of which was held by international subsidiaries and may be subject to U.S income taxes and foreign withholding

taxes if repatriated to the United States Cash balances held internationally are typically used for international

operating needs reinvested to fund expansion of existing international businesses or used to fund new international

acquisitions In the U.S the Company utilizes cash flows from domestic operations to fund domestic cash needs

which primarily consist of dividend payments acquisitions share repurchases servicing of domestic debt

obligations and general corporate needs The Company also uses short-term credit facilities of $2.5 billion for short-

term liquidity needs The Company believes cash generated domestically will continue to be sufficient to fund cash

requirements in the U.S

Debt

Total debt at December 31 2011 and 2010 was as follows

Increase

Dollars In Thousands 2011 2010 Decrease

Short-term debt 502063 326236 175827

Long-term debt 3488198 2542087 946111

Total debt $3990261 $2868323 $1121938

Total debt to total capitalization 28.5% 23.1%

The Company issues commercial paper to fund general corporate needs and to fund small and medium-sized

acquisitions The Company has committed lines of credit of $2.5 billion in the U.S to support the potential issuances

of commercial paper Of this amount $1.0 billion is provided under line of credit agreement with termination

date of June 10 2016 and $1.0 billion is provided under line of credit agreement with termination date of

June 11 2013 The remaining $500.0 million is provided under revolving credit facility that terminates on June 15

2012 No amounts are outstanding under these three facilities The Companys foreign operations also have unused

capacity on uncommitted facilities of approximately $329 million

The Company had outstanding commercial
paper of approximately $192.5 million at December 31 2011 which is

included in short-term debt and no outstanding commercial paper at December 31 2010 The maximum outstanding

commercial paper balance during 2011 was $1.8 billion while the average daily balance was $744.9 million
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In August 2011 the Company issued $350.0 million of 3.375% notes due September 15 2021 at 99.552% of face

value and $650.0 million of 4.875% notes due September 15 2041 at 98.539% of face value The effective interest

rates of the notes are 3.4% and 4.9% respectively These notes are senior unsecured obligations ranking equal in

right of payment with all other senior unsecured indebtedness of the Company The net proceeds from these

issuances were used to repay outstanding commercial paper

The Company believes that based on its current free operating cash flow debt-to-capitalization ratios and credit

ratings it could readily obtain additional financing if necessary
The Companys targeted debt-to-capital ratio is 20%

to 30% excluding the impact of any larger acquisitions

Total Debt to EBITDA

The Company uses the ratio of total debt to EBITDA to measure its ability to repay
its outstanding debt

obligations The Company believes that total debt to EBITDA is meaningful metric to investors in evaluating the

Companys long term financial liquidity and may be different than the method used by other companies to calculate

total debt to EBITDA The ratio of total debt to EBITDA represents
total debt divided by income from continuing

operations before interest expense other income expense income taxes depreciation and amortization and

impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets on trailing twelve month basis

Total debt to EBITDA for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 was as follows

Dollars in Thousands 2011 2010

Total debt $3990261 $2868323

Income from continuing operations $2017014 $1452438

Add

Interest expense
192133 175163

Other income expense 53839 9984

Income taxes 575700 636400

Depreciation 336495 334786

Amortization and impairment of goodwill and

other intangible assets 255338 208433

EBITDA $3322841 $2797236

Total debt to EBITDA ratio 1.2 1.0

Stockholders Equity

The changes to stockholders equity during 2011 and 2010 were as follows

In Thousands 2011 2010

Beginning balance 9571999 $8699122

Net income 2071384 1502952

Cash dividends declared 685146 649708

Repurchases of common stock 950000 350000

Stock option and restricted stock activity 220554 186818

Currency translation adjustments 140521 153230

Other 54206 29585

Ending balance $10034064 $9571999

30



CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Companys significant contractual obligations as of December 31 2011 were as follows

2017 and

InThousands 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 FutureYears

Totallong-termdebt $262343 10077 $1776211 2.861 675 $1698374

Interest payments on notes 186011 183840 153893 87482 87432 961324

Minimum lease payments 156760 123549 92642 65.566 50948 87348

$605114 $317466 $2022746 $155909 $139055 $2747046

As of December 31 2011 the Company has recorded noncurrent liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits of$187.8

million The Company is not able to reasonably estimate the timing of payments related to the liabilities for

unrecognized tax benefits

At December 31 2011 the Company had open stand-by letters of credit of approximately $213.0 million

substantially all of which expire in 2012 and 2013 The Company had no other significant off-balance sheet

commitments at December 31 2011

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company has six accounting policies which it believes are most important to the Companys financial condition

and results of operations and which require the Company to make estimates about matters that are inherently

uncertain Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various assumptions that are believed to

be reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying

values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these

estimates

These critical accounting policies are as follows

Realizability of Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Generally the Companys
businesses perform an analysis of the historical sales usage of the individual inventory items on hand and reserve is

recorded to adjust inventory cost to market value based on the following usage
criteria

Usage Classification Criteria Reserve

Active Quantity on hand is less than prior months usage 0%

Slow-moving Some usage in last 12 months but quantity on hand exceeds prior

months usage 50%

Obsolete No usage in the last 12 months 90%

In addition for approximately 44% of the U.S inventories the Company has elected to use the last-in first-out

LIFO method of inventory costing Generally this method results in lower inventory value than the first-in

first-out FIFO method due to the effects of inflation

Collectibiity ofAccounts Receivable The Company estimates the allowance for uncollectible accounts based on

the greater of specific reserve or reserve calculated based on the historical write-off percentage over the last two

years In addition the allowance for uncollectible accounts includes reserves for customer credits and cash

discounts which are also estimated based on past experience

Depreciation ofPlantandEquipment The Companys U.S businesses compute depreciation on an accelerated

basis as follows

Buildings and improvements 150% declining balance

Machinery and equipment 200% declining balance

The majority of the international businesses compute depreciation on straight-line basis to conform to their local

statutory accounting and tax regulations
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Income Taxes The Company provides deferred income tax assets and liabilities based on the estimated future tax

effects of differences between the financial and tax bases of assets and liabilities based on currently enacted tax

laws The Companys deferred and other tax balances are based on managements interpretation of the tax

regulations and rulings in numerous taxing jurisdictions Income tax expense and liabilities recognized by the

Company also reflect its best estimates and assumptions regarding among other things the level of future taxable

income the effect of the Companys various tax planning strategies and uncertain tax positions Future tax authority

rulings and changes in tax laws changes in projected levels of taxable income and future tax planning strategies

could affect the actual effective tax rate and tax balances recorded by the Company

Goodwill and Intangible Assets The Companys business acquisitions typically result in recording goodwill and

other intangible assets which are significant portion of the Companys total assets and affect the amount of

amortization expense and impairment charges that the Company could incur in future periods The Company follows

the guidance prescribed in the accounting standards to test goodwill and intangible assets for impairment On an

annual basis or more frequently if triggering events occur the Company compares the estimated fair value of its 52

reporting units to the carrying value of each reporting unit to determine if potential goodwill impairment exists If

the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying value an impairment loss if any is recorded for the

difference between the implied fair value and the carrying value of the reporting units goodwill In calculating the

fair value of the reporting units or specific intangible assets management relies on number of factors including

operating results business plans economic projections anticipated future cash flows comparable transactions and

other market data There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and managements judgment in applying

them in the impairment tests of goodwill and other intangible assets

As of December 31 2011 the Company had total goodwill and intangible assets of $7.4 billion allocated to its 52

reporting units Although there can be no assurance that the Company will not incur additional impairment charges

related to its goodwill and other intangible assets the Company generally believes the risk of significant impairment

charges is lessened by the number of diversified businesses and end markets represented by its 52 reporting units

that have goodwill and other intangible assets In addition the individual businesses in many of the reporting units

have been acquired over long period of time and in many cases have been able to improve their performance

primarily as result of the application of the Companys 80/20 business simplification process The amount of

goodwill and other intangible assets allocated to individual reporting units range from approximately $5 million to

$830 million with the average amount equal to $140 million

Fair value determinations require considerable judgment and are sensitive to changes in the factors described above

Due to the inherent uncertainties associated with these factors and economic conditions in the Companys global end

markets impairment charges related to one or more reporting units could occur in future periods

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits The Company has various company-sponsored defined benefit

retirement plans covering substantial portion of U.S employees and many employees outside the United States

Pension and other postretirement expense and obligations are determined based on actuarial valuations Pension

benefit obligations are generally based on each participants years of service future compensation and age at

retirement or termination Important assumptions in determining pension and postretirement expense
and obligations

are the discount rate the expected long-term return on plan assets and healthcare cost trend rates See the Pension

and Other Postretirement Benefits note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for additional

discussion of actuarial assumptions used in determining pension and postretirement health care liabilities and

expenses

The Company determines the discount rate used to measure plan liabilities as of the December 31 measurement date

for the U.S primary pension plan The discount rate reflects the current rate at which the associated liabilities could

theoretically be effectively settled at the end of the year In estimating this rate the Company looks at rates of return

on high-quality fixed income investments with similar duration to the liabilities in the plan 25 basis point

decrease in the discount rate would increase the present value of the U.S primary pension plan obligation by

approximately $32 million

The expected long-term return on plan assets is based on historical and expected long-term returns for similar

investment allocations among asset classes For the U.S primary pension plan the Companys assumption for the

expected return on plan assets was 8.0% for 2011 and will be 8.0% for 2012 25 basis point decrease in the

expected return on plan assets would increase the annual pension expense by approximately $3 million See the

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits note in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for

information on how this rate is determined
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ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The Companys exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Companys debt

The following table presents the Companys debt for which fair value is subject to changing market interest rates

6.55%

Preferred

Debt 5.25% 4.88%
Securities 5.15% Euro Notes 6.25% Notes Due 3.375% 4.875%

Due Notes Due Due Notes Due thru Notes Due Notes Due
InThousands Dec3l2011 Aprl2014 Octl2014 Aprl2019 Dec3l2020 Sepl52021 Sepl52041

As of December 31 2011

Estimated cash outflow by year

of principal maturity

2012 $250000 $10233

2013 4312

2014 800000 972000 2664

2015 1018

2016 131

2017 and thereafter 700000 3596 350000 650000

Estimated fair value 250000 876800 1064218 871668 24362 367574 760533

Carrying value 250000 799693 971465 699912 21954 348476 640551

As of December 31 2010

Total estimated cash outflow $250000 $800000 $1002750 $700000 $21954

Estimated fair value 263750 882480 1098412 816200 23471

Carrying value 249949 799567 1002016 699903 21954

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company operates in the United States and 57 other countries In general the Companys products are primarily

manufactured and sold within the same country The initial funding for the foreign manufacturing operations was

provided primarily through the permanent investment of equity capital from the U.S parent company Therefore the

Company and its subsidiaries do not have significant assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than their

functional currencies As such the Company does not have any significant derivatives or other financial instruments

that are subject to foreign currency risk at December 31 2011 or 2010

In October 2007 the Company issued750.0 million of 5.25% Euro notes due October 2014 The Company has

significant operations with the Euro as their functional currency The Company believes that the Euro cash flows

from these businesses will be adequate to fund the debt obligations under these notes
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ITEM Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Illinois Tool Works Inc the Company or ITW is responsible for establishing and

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act

Rule l3a-15f ITWs internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the

Companys management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published

financial statements

All internal control systems no matter how well designed have inherent limitations Therefore even those

systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement

preparation and presentation

ITW management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 201 In making this assessment it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal ControlJntegrated Framework Based on our

assessment we believe that as of December 31 2011 the Companys internal control over financial reporting is

effective based on those criteria

The effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 has been

audited by Deloitte Touche LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report herein

1st David Speer Is Ronald Kropp

David Speer Ronald Kropp

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer

February 17 2012 February 17 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Illinois Tool Works Inc

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Illinois Tool Works Inc and Subsidiaries the

Company as of December 2011 and 2010 and the related statements of income income reinvested in the

business comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2011
We also have audited the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of Iecember 31 2011 based on

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Companys management is responsible for these financial

statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying management report on

internal control over financial reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and

an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and effected

by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that

could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion

or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or

detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Illinois Tool Works Inc and Subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years

in the period ended 2011 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the

Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December

2011 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

As discussed in the International Reporting Lag note within the Notes to Financial Statements on January 2011
the Company elected to change its method of accounting to eliminate one-month lag for reporting its international

operations outside of North America which was retrospectively adjusted in the Companys 2010 and 2009

consolidated financial statements

/s/ DEL OITTE TOUCHE LLP

Deloitte Touche LLP

Chicago Illinois

February 17 2012
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Statement of Income

Illinois Tool Works Inc and Subsidiaries

In Thousands except for per share amounts

Operating Revenues

Cost of revenues

Selling administrative and research and development

expenses

Amortization of intangible assets

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

Operating Income

Interest expense

Other income expense

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes

Income taxes

Income from Continuing Operations

Income from Discontinued Operations

Net Income

Income Per Share from Continuing Operations

Basic

Diluted

Income Per Share from Discontinued Operations

Basic

Diluted

Net Income Per Share

Basic

Diluted

For the Years Ended December31

2011 2010 2009

$17786583 $15415692 $13572996

11517885 9996668 8953380

3282352 2956574 2933616

255338 207427 197469

1006 105568

2731008 2254017 1382963

192133 175163 164589

53839 9984 4454

2592714 2088838 1213920

575700 636400 245282

2017014 1452438 968638

54370 50514 4059

2071384 1502952 972697

4.10 2.90 1.94

4.08 2.89 1.93

0.11 0.10 0.01

0.11 0.10 0.01

4.21 3.00 1.94

4.19 2.99 1.94

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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Statement of Income Reinvested in the Business

Illinois Tool Works Inc and Subsidiaries

In Thousands

Beginning Balance

Net income

Cash dividends declared

Cumulative effect of adopting new accounting principles

net of tax

Ending Balance

For the Years Ended December31

2011 2010 2009

$10407946 9554702 9196465

2071384 1502952 972697

685146 649708 620679

________ __________ 6219

$11794184 $10407946 9554702

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Illinois Tool Works Inc and Subsidiaries

For the Years Ended December31

2010 2009

$1502952 972697

In Thousands 2011
__________ __________

Net Income $2071384

Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign currency translation adjustments 140521 153230 301112

Pension and other postretirement benefit adjustments

netoftax 62411 24966 62271
Comprehensive Income $1868452 $1681148 $1211538

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
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Statement of Financial Position

Illinois Tool Works Inc and Subsidiaries

December31

In Thousands except shares 2011 2010

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and equivalents 1177875 1186367

Trade receivables 2818892 2581592

Inventories 1715859 1634856

Deferred income taxes 365905 301486

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 384491 266187

Assets held for sale 386324
___________

Total current assets 6849346 5970488

Plant and Equipment

Land 248250 264875

Buildings and improvements 1566742 1574593

Machinery and equipment 3972417 3930502

Equipment leased to others 187387 187284

Construction in progress 112501 104440

Gross plant and equipment 6087297 6061694

Accumulated depreciation 4061901 3995538

Net plant and equipment 2025396 2066156

Investments 408906 440760

Goodwill 5197601 4971818

Intangible assets 2233378 1731016

Deferred income taxes 633832 615326

Other assets 635055 616747

$17983514 $16412311

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current Liabilities

Short-term debt 502063 326236

Accounts payable 696776 749489

Accrued expenses 1435603 1391396

Cash dividends payable 174099 169233

Income taxes payable 56517 386498

Deferred income taxes 4821

Liabilities held for sale 106848
___________

Total current liabilities 2976727 3022852

Noncurrent Liabilities

Long-term debt 3488198 2542087

Deferred income taxes 116954 194590

Other liabilities 1367571 1080783

Total noncurrent liabilities 4972723 3817460

Stockholders Equity

Common stock

Issued542500435 shares in 2011 and 538505782 shares in 2010 5425 5385

Additional paid-in-capital 686155 460806

Income reinvested in the business 11794184 10407946

Common stock held in treasury 2692196 1740682
Accumulated other comprehensive income 224223 427155

Noncontrolling interest 16273 11389

Total stockholders equity 10034064 9571999

$17983514 $16412311

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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Statement of Cash Flows

Illinois Tool Works Inc and Subsidiaries

For the Years Ended December31

InThousands 2011 2010 2009

Cash Provided by Used for Operating Activities

Net income 2071384 1502952 972697

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 336495 334786 376226
Amortization and impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 257514 214000 308615

Change in deferred income taxes 175923 142729 481803
Provision for uncollectible accounts 4553 4390 17543

Gain loss on sale of plant and equipment 20 701 1596
Income from investments 17486 20808 4944
Gain loss on disposal of operations and affiliates 1899 12627 34315

Stock compensation expense 56374 56443 51858

Othernon-cash items net 5766 1810 1086
Change in assets and liabilities

Increase decrease in

Trade receivables 302952 170579 223055

Inventories 50577 223597 576932

Prepaid expenses and other assets 50238 38723 509

Increase decrease in

Accounts payable 54977 69543 19636
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 51586 66533 246370
Income taxes receivable and payable 182416 148796 355561

Other net 18549 36 2484

Net cash provided by operating activities 1956008 1488313 2167552

Cash Provided by Used for Investing Activities

Acquisition of businesses excluding cash and equivalents and additional

interest in affiliates 1308164 497435 281404
Additions to plant and equipment 353408 287759 255739
Purchases of investments 5641 16047 17586
Proceeds from investments 36516 26438 20215

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 17079 18427 26736
Proceeds from sale of operations and affiliates 21918 63197 17259

Other net 12569 20787 23481
Net cash used for investing activities 1579131 672392 514000

Cash Provided by Used for Financing Activities

Cash dividends paid 680280 636200 619681
Issuance of common stock 153100 114844 101733

Repurchases of common stock 950000 350000
Net proceeds repayments of debt with

original
maturities of three months or less 166592 157286 1615998

Proceeds from debt with original maturities of more than three months 989596 1437 2153440

Repayments of debt with original maturities of more than three months 8655 34236 1279869
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 8199 8787 4051

Net cash used for financing activities 321448 1052654 1256324
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Equivalents 63921 76934 87951

Cash and Equivalents

Increase decrease during the year 8492 159799 485179

Beginning ofyear 1186367 1346166 860987

End ofyear 1177875 1186367 1346166

Cash Paid During theYear for Interest 168331 174974 156144

Cash Paid During the Year for Income Taxes Net of Refunds 978257 960013 355069

Liabilities Assumed from Acquisitions 200028 216478 57863

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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Notes to Financial Statements

The Notes to Financial Statements furnish additional information on items in the financial statements The notes

have been arranged in the same order as the related items appear in the statements

Illinois Tool Works Inc the Company or ITW is multinational manufacturer of diversified range
of

industrial products and equipment with operations in 58 countries The Company primarily serves the construction

general industrial food institutional/restaurant automotive OEM/tiers automotive aftermarket and food and

beverage markets

Significant accounting principles and policies of the Company are in italics Certain reclassifications of prior years

data have been made to conform to current year reporting

The preparation of the Companys financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements

and the notes to financial statements Actual results could differ from those estimates The significant estimates

included in the preparation of the financial statements are related to inventories trade receivables plant and

equipment income taxes goodwill and intangible assets product liability matters litigation product warranties

pensions other postretirement benefits environmental matters and stock options

International Reporting Lag Prior to 2011 the Companys international operations outside of North America had

fiscal reporting period that began on December and ended on November 30 Effective January 2011 the Company

eliminated the one month lag for the reporting of its international operations outside of North America As result the

Company is now reporting both North American and international results on calendar year basis The Company

determined that the elimination of the one month reporting lag was preferable because the same period-end reporting

date improves overall financial reporting as the impact of current events economic conditions and global trends are

consistently reflected in the financial statements of the North American and international business units

The Company has applied this change in accounting principle retrospectively to all prior financial statement periods

presented The impact of the elimination of the one month reporting lag for international operations outside of North

America for the years
ended December 31 2010 and 2009 was as follows

Increase Decrease

In Thousands Except per Share Amounts 2010 2009

Operating revenues $21796 91574

Income from continuing operations 24877 26023

Income from continuing operations per diluted share 0.04 0.05

Net income 24241 25688

Net income per diluted share 0.04 0.05

The cumulative effect of adopting this change in accounting principle was recorded as an after-tax increase of

$7274000 to income reinvested in the business as of January 2009

Consolidation and Translation The financial statements include the Company and its majority-owned

subsidiaries All sign ficant intercompany transactions are eliminated from the financial statements

Foreign subsidiaries assets and liabilities are translated to Us dollars at end-of-period exchange rates Revenues

and expenses are translated at average rates for the period Translation adjustments are reported as component of

accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders equity

Discontinued Operations The Company periodically reviews its operations for businesses which may no longer

be aligned with its long-term objectives In April 2011 the Company entered into definitive agreement to sell its

finishing group of businesses included within the All Other segment to Graco Inc in $650000000 cash

transaction In December 2011 the Federal Trade Commission FTC filed complaint challenging Gracos

acquisition of the finishing business The Company intends to divest the finishing business in 2012 The finishing

business has been classified as held for sale beginning in the second quarter of 2011

In the second quarter of 2011 the Companys Board of Directors approved plans to divest consumer packaging

business in the All Other segment and an electronic components business in the Power Systems Electronics

segment The electronic components business was sold in the fourth quarter of 2011 The Company expects to divest

the consumer packaging business in 2012 The consumer packaging business has been classified as held for sale

beginning in the second quarter of 2011
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Notes to Financial Statements Continued

The Company exited flooring business in the Decorative Surfaces segment in early 2011 and sold security

printing business in the All Other segment in the third quarter of 2010

In 2008 the Companys Board of Directors authorized the divestiture of the Click Commerce industrial software

business which was previously reported in the All Other segment In the second quarter of 2009 the Company

completed the sale of the Click Commerce business Additionally in 2009 the Company sold an automotive

components business which was previously reported in the Transportation segment

The consolidated statement of income and the notes to financial statements have been restated to present the

operating results of the held for sale and previously divested or exited businesses discussed above as discontinued

operations for 2011 2010 and 2009

Results of the discontinued operations for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $470252 $432705 $420609

Income before taxes 81602 84912 5080

Income tax expense 27232 34398 1021
Income from discontinued operations 54370 50514 4059

Income before taxes from discontinued operations included $3675000 loss related to the sale of the electronics

components business in 2011 $19559000 gain related to the sale of the security printing business in 2010 and

losses of $27665000 related to the sale of the Click Commerce and automotive components businesses in 2009

There were no businesses held for sale as of December 31 2010 and 2009 The assets and liabilities of the held for

sale finishing and consumer packaging businesses discussed above were included in assets and liabilities held for

sale in the statement of financial position as of December 31 2011 as follows

In Thousands December 312011

Trade receivables 71684

Inventories 55642

Net plant and equipment 44635

Goodwill and intangible assets 201526

Other 12837

Total assets held for sale $386324

Accounts payable 21672

Accrued expenses 54723

Other 30453

Total liabilities held for sale $106848
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Notes to Financial Statements Continued

AcquisitionsThe Company accounts for acquisitions under the acquisition method in which assets acquired and

liabilities assumed are recorded at fair value as of the date of acquisition The operating results of the acquired com

panies are included in the Company consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition Acquisitions

individually and in the aggregate did not materially affect the Companys results of operations or financial position

for
any period presented Summarized information related to acquisitions is as follows

In Thousands except number of acquisitions 2011 2010 2009

Number of acquisitions 28 24 20

Net cash paid during the year $1308164 $497435 $281404

The premium over tangible net assets recorded for acquisitions based on purchase price allocations during 2011

2010 and 2009 was as follows

2011 2010 2009

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Premium Average Premium Average Premium

In Thousands except for weighted-average lives years Life Recorded Life Recorded Life Recorded

Goodwill 475634 $219222 95936

Amortizable intangible assets

Customer lists and relationships 12.2 362387 11.8 120845 10.7 48152

Patents and proprietary technology 9.6 98117 10.9 31986 12.3 30421

Trademarks and brands 17.3 245295 14.9 70667 14.0 19732

Noncompete agreements 5.0 26818 5.3 4617 6.2 8859

Other 1.8 10307 4.9 12572 4.4 6846

Total amortizable intangible assets 13.1 742924 12.1 240687 10.9 114010

Indefinite-lived intangible assets

Trademarks and brands 5481 12254

Total premium recorded $1224039 $459909 $222200

Of the total goodwill recorded for acquisitions the Company expects goodwill of $302146000 in 2011

$51304000 in 2010 and $72216000 in 2009 will be tax deductible

On January 2009 the Company adopted new accounting guidance related to business combinations The new

accounting guidance requires an entity to recognize assets acquired liabilities assumed contractual contingencies

and contingent consideration at their fair value on the acquisition date The new guidance also requires prospectively

that acquisition-related costs be expensed as incurred restructuring costs generally be recognized as post-

acquisition expense and changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties after

the measurement period impact income tax expense Upon adoption of the new guidance the Company recorded an

after-tax charge to income reinvested in the business of $1055000 in 2009

Operating Revenues are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists product has shipped and

the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred or services have been rendered the price to the customer is

fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured which is generally at the time of product shipment

Typical sales arrangements are for standard products and provide for transfer of ownership and risk of loss at the

time of shipment In limited circumstances where significant obligations to the customer are unfulfilled at the time of

shipment typically involving installation and customer acceptance revenue recognition is deferred until such

obligations have been completed Customer allowances and rebates consisting primarily of volume discounts and

other short-term incentive programs are estimated at the time of sale based on historical experience and known

trends and are recorded as reduction in reported revenues No single customer accounted for more than 5% of

consolidated revenues in 2011 2010 or 2009

In October 2009 new accounting guidance was issued on multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements The new

accounting guidance amends the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangements to enable the vendor to account

for product or services separately rather than as combined unit The guidance establishes hierarchy for

determining the selling price of deliverable which is based on vendor-specific objective evidence third

party evidence or estimates The Company adopted the new accounting guidance on January 2011 and the

adoption did not materially affect the Companys financial position or results of operations

Research and Development Expenses are recorded as expense
in the year incurred These costs were

$242979000 in 2011 $213339000 in 2010 and $191859000 in 2009

42



Notes to Financial Statements Continued

Rental Expense was $178439000 in 2011 $165171000 in 2010 and $170561000 in 2009 Future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable leases for the
years ending December are as follows

In Thousands

2012 $156760

2013 123549

2014 92642

2015 65566

2016 50948

2017 and future years 87348

$576813

Advertising Expenses are recorded as expense in the year incurred These costs were $87965000 in 2011

$72016000 in 2010 and $63290000 in 2009

Other Income Expense consisted of the following

In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Interest income $40276 $24065 $16649

Investment income 17486 20808 4944

Losses on foreign currency transactions 4272 16664 21284
Other net 349 18225 4763

$53839 9984 4454

Income TaxesThe Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes Deferred

income taxes are determined based on the estimated future tax effects of d/jŁrences between the financial and tax

bases of assets and liabilities given the provisions of the enacted tax laws The components of the provision for

income taxes were as shown below

In Thousands

U.S Federal income taxes

Current

Deferred

Benefit of net operating loss and foreign tax credits

carryforwards

Foreign income taxes

Current

Deferred

Benefit of net operating loss carryforwards

State income taxes

Current

Deferred

Benefit of net operating loss carryforwards

$514798 $396880 $226615

33733 45630 21213

85898
481065 351250 119504

147425 266384 334227

82069 19615 189995

4237 3134 30820
61119 243635 113412

65122 51530 38836

31357 2837 22527

249 7178 3943
33516 41515 12366

$575700 $636400 $245282

2011 2010 2009
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Notes to Financial Statements Continued

Income from continuing operations before income taxes for domestic and foreign operations was as follows

In Thousands 2011
___________ ___________

Domestic $1452268

Foreign 1140446
_________ _________

$2592714
__________ __________

The reconciliation between the U.S Federal statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate was as follows

U.S Federal statutory tax rate

State income taxes net of U.S Federal tax benefit

Nondeductible goodwill impairment

Differences between U.S Federal statutory and foreign tax rates

Nontaxable foreign interest income

Foreign tax credit related to global legal structure reorganization

German tax audit settlement

Australian court decision 6.4

Tax effect of foreign dividends

Tax relief for U.S manufacturers

Other net

Effective tax rate

Deferred US Federal income taxes and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided on the remaining

undistributed earnings of certain internationalsubsidiaries of approximately $6300000000 and $5 700000000

as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively as these earnings are considered permanently invested Upon

repatriation of these earnings to the U.S in the form of dividends or otherwise the Company may be subject to

U.S income taxes and foreign withholding taxes The actual U.S tax cost would depend on income tax laws and

circumstances at the time of distribution Determination of the related tax liability is not practicable because of the

complexities associated with the hypothetical calculation

The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

In Thousands ___________ __________ ___________ __________

Goodwill and intangible assets

Inventory reserves capitalized tax cost and

LIFO inventory

Investments

Plant and equipment

Accrued expenses and reserves

Employee benefit accruals

Foreign tax credit carryforwards

Net operating loss carryforwards

Capital loss carryforwards

Allowances for uncollectible accounts

Pension liabilities

Deferred intercompany deductions

Other
_________ ________ _________ ________

Gross deferred income tax assets liabilities

Valuation allowances _________ __________ _________

Total deferred income tax assets liabilities __________ ___________ __________

2010

$1216749

872089

$2088838

2009

473341

740579

$1213920

2011 2010 2009

35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

1.1 1.2 0.8

2.7 2.0

3.6 3.4

2.5

3.3

4.6

7.0

4.7

0.4 0.5

1.3 1.3

0.3 0.5

22.2% 30.5%

1.3

0.7

0.9

20.2%

2011 2010

Asset Liability Asset Liability

355412 $786815 386662 $758136

75974

36017

27665

78961

350829

11806

622607

34499

19864

113423

460423

123554

2311034

448587

$1862447

12999
56626

106839

21206

984485

$984485

65592 11961
33849 57196
37017 90505
77169

335668

94100

528915

34564

17813

116268

240233

115794 32059

2083644 949857

411565
________

$1672079 $949857

Valuation allowances are established when it is estimated that it is more likely than not that the tax benefit of the

deferred tax asset will not be realized The valuation allowances recorded at December 31 2011 and 2010 relate

primarily to certain net operating loss carryforwards and capital loss carryforwards
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Notes to Financial Statements Continued

At December 31 2011 the Company had net operating loss carryforwards available to offset future taxable income

in the U.S and certain foreign jurisdictions which expire as follows

Gross Net

Operating Loss

In Thousands Carryforwards

2012 8610
2013 8116
2014 5932
2015 6945
2016 8247
2017 10813

2018 32390
2019 76834
2020 83794
2021 18728

2022 14639

2023 12518

2024 12324

2025 11065

2026 1622

2027 4928
2028 3493
2029 4490
2030 5476
Do not expire 1704783

$2035747

The Company has foreign tax credit
carryovers

of $871000 as of December 31 2011 and $94100000 as of

December 31 2010 that are available for use by the Company between 2012 and 2020

The changes in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits during 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Beginning balance $717711 $724777 $799647

Additions based on tax positions related to the

current year 43042 57491 122714

Additions for tax positions of prior years 74178 56034 122241

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 16305 96161 17973
Settlements 376598 383058
Foreign currency translation 4850 24430 81206

Ending balance $437178 $717711 $724777

Included in the balance at December 31 2011 are approximately $437000000 of tax positions that if recognized

would impact the Companys effective tax rate

The Company has been litigating its dispute with the Australian Tax Office over the tax treatment of an

intercompany financing transaction between the U.S and Australia The case was heard before the Federal Court of

Australia Victoria in September 2010 The proceedings resulted from the Companys appeal of decision by the

Australian Tax Commissioner to disallow income tax deductions for the income tax years 2002 through 2005 and the

assessment of withholding taxes for income tax year 2003 The Company also contested the Commissioners similar

determination for income tax years 2006 and 2007 however the parties agreed to follow the Courts decision made

on the earlier years On February 2011 the Federal Court of Australia Victoria decided in the Companys favor

with respect to significant portion of the income tax deductions The Court issued the final orders on February 18

2011 Based on this decision the Company decreased its unrecognized tax benefits related to this matter by

approximately $197000000 and recorded favorable discrete non-cash tax benefit to reduce tax expense by

$165927000 in the first quarter of 2011 The Australian Tax Office has appealed the timing of certain of the

deductions the outcome of which is not expected to be material

During the first quarter of 201 the Company resolved an issue with the Internal Revenue Service in the United

States related to deduction for foreign exchange losses on an intercompany loan that resulted in decrease in

unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $179000000
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In March 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act

were signed into law As result future tax deductions for retiree prescription drug coverage
will be reduced by the

amount of subsidies received starting in 2013 In the first quarter of2OlO the Company recorded discrete tax

charge of $21881000 for the impact of the health care reform legislation

The Company settled several items during 2009 related to its German and U.S tax audits The most significant

issues related to financing transaction leveraged leases and mortgage-backed securities

The Company files numerous consolidated and separate tax returns in the U.S Federal jurisdiction and in many state

and foreign jurisdictions The following table summarizes the open tax years for the Companys major jurisdictions

Jurisdiction Open Tax Years

United States Federal 2004-2011

United Kingdom 2000-2011

Germany 20062011

France 20042011

Australia 20022011

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense The accrual for

interest and penalties as of December 31 2011 and 2010 was $1775000 and $40000000 respectively

Income Per Share from Continuing Operations is computed by dividing income from continuing operations by the

weighted-average number of shares outstanding for the period Income from continuing operations per diluted share

is computed by dividing income from continuing operations by the weighted-average number of shares assuming

dilution for stock options and restricted stock units Dilutive shares reflect the potential additional shares that would

be outstanding if the dilutive stock options outstanding were exercised and the unvested restricted stock units vested

during the period The computation of income
per

share from continuing operations was as follows

In Thousands except per share amounts 2011 2010 2009

Income from continuing operations $2017014 $1452438 $968638

Income per share from continuing operations Basic

Weighted-average common shares 491439 500772 500177

Income per share from continuing operations Basic 4.10 2.90 1.94

Income per share from continuing operations Diluted

Weighted-average common shares 491439 500772 500177

Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock units 3207 2578 1744

Weighted-average common shares assuming dilution 494646 503350 501921

Income per share from continuing operationsDiluted 4.08 2.89 1.93

Options that were considered antidilutive were not included in the computation of diluted income per share from

continuing operations The antidilutive options outstanding as of December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 were

5005664 10434146 and 14581559 respectively

Cash and Equivalents included interest-bearing instruments of $551342000 at December 31 2011 and

$694272000 at December 31 2010 Interest-bearing instruments have maturities of 90 days or less and are stated

at cost which approximates fur value
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Trade Receivables were net of allowances for uncollectible accounts The changes in the allowances for

uncollectible accounts during 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Beginning balance 70235 76459 78320
Provision charged to expense 4553 4390 17543
Write-offs net ofrecoveries 10159 12513 24799

Acquisitions and divestitures 3657 2866 2327
Foreign currency translation 1641 957 3209
Transfer to assets held for sale 1393

Other 27 10 141

Ending balance 65225 70235 76459

Inventories at December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

InThousands 2011 2010

Raw material 596129 553089

Work-in-process 155896 165292

Finished goods 963834 916475

$1715859 $1634856

inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and include material labor and factory overhead The last-in

first-out LIFO method is used to determine the cost of the inventories of approximately 44% of the US
inventories Inventories priced at LIFO were approximately 22% and 21% of total inventories as of December 31
2011 and 2010 respectively The first-in first-out FIFO method which approximates current cost is used for all

other inventories If the FIFO method was used for all inventories total inventories would have been approximately

$127725000 and $122888000 higher than reported at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets as of December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

InThousands 2011 2010

Income tax refunds receivable $111663 10937

Value-added-tax receivables 65196 59954

Vendoradvances 39875 35618

Insurance 24082 21111

Other 143675 138567

$384491 $266187

Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Renewals and improvements that increase

the useful life ofplant and equipment are capitalized Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred

Depreciation was $334331000 in 2011 $327520000 in 2010 and $367196000 in 2009 and was reflected

primarily in cost of revenues Depreciation included in income from discontinued operations was $2164000 in

2011 $7266000 in 2010 and $9030000 in 2009 Depreciation ofplant and equipment for financial reporting

purposes is computed on an accelerated basis for US businesses and on straight-line basis for majority of the

international businesses

The ranges of useful lives used to depreciate plant and equipment are as follows

Buildings and improvements 550 years

Machinery and equipment 312 years

Equipment leased to others Term of lease
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Investments as of December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

In Thousands 2011 2010

Leases of equipment $275377 $281067

Venture capital limited partnership 42321 50112

Properties held for sale 41846 45125

Property developments 26081 25454

Affordable housing limited partnerships 23281 39002

$408906 $440760

Leases of Equipment

The components of the investment in leases of equipment at December 31 2011 and 2010 were as shown below

InThousands 2011 2010

Leveraged and direct financing leases

Gross lease contracts receivable net of nonrecourse debt service $130284 $145687

Estimated residual value of leased assets 247512 247512

Unearned income 109834 120863

267962 272336

Equipment under operating leases 7415 8731

$275377 $281067

Deferred tax liabilities related to leases of equipment were $54262000 and $56170000 at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively

The investment in leases of equipment at December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following types of

equipment

In Thousands 2011 2010

Telecommunications $170834 $178946

Air traffic control 70210 66433

Aircraft 34074 35391

Manufacturing
259 297

$275377 $281067

In 2002 the Company entered into leveraged leasing transactions related to mobile telecommunications equipment

with two major European telecommunications companies with cash investment of $144676000 In 2003 the

Company entered into leveraged lease transaction related to air traffic control equipment in Australia with cash

investment of $48763000 Under the terms of the telecommunications and air traffic control lease transactions the

lessees have made upfront payments to third-party financial institutions that are acting as payment undertakers

These payment undertakers are obligated to make the required scheduled payments directly to the nonrecourse debt

holders and to the lessors including the Company In the event of default by the lessees the Company has the right

to recover its net investment from the payment undertakers In addition the lessees are required to purchase residual

value insurance from creditworthy third party at date near the end of the lease term

Income from leveraged leases was $13372000 $10513000 and $7618000 for the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Unearned income related to leveraged leases is recognized as lease income over

the lfe of the lease based on the effective yield of the lease The Company adjusts recognition of/ease income on its

leveraged leases when there is change in the assumptions affecting total income or the timing of cash flows

associated with the lease The residual values of/eased assets are estimated at the inception of the lease based on

market appraisals and reviewed for impairment at least annually
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Other Investments

The Company entered into venture capital limited partnership in 2001 that invests primarily in late-stage venture

capital opportunities The Company has 25% limited partnership interest and accounts for this investment using the

equity method whereby the Company recognizes its proportionate share of the partnership income or loss The

partnership financial statements are prepared on mark-to-market basis

The Company has entered into several affordable housing limited partnerships primarily to receive tax benefits in the

form of tax credits and tax deductions from operating losses These affordable housing investments are accounted for

using the effective yield method in which the investment is amortized to income tax expense as the tax benefits are

received The tax credits are credited to income tax expense as they are allocated to the Company

The Company has invested in property developments with residential construction developer through partnerships

in which the Company has 50% interest These partnership investments are accounted for using the equity method

whereby the Company recognizes its proportionate share of the partnerships income or loss

Goodwill and Intangible AssetsGoodwill represents the excess cost over fair value of the net assets of purchased

businesses The Company does not amortize goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives The Company

performs an annual impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives based on the

estimated fair value of the related reporting unit or intangible asset

On January 2009 the Company adopted new accounting guidance on fair value measurements for all nonfinancial

assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on nonrecurring basis The new

accounting guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants and provides guidance for measuring fair value and the

necessary disclosures

When performing its annual goodwill impairment assessment the Company evaluates the goodwill assigned to each

of its 52 reporting units for potential impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of the relevant reporting unit

to the carrying value The Company uses various valuation techniques to determine the fair value of its reporting

units including discounting estimated future cash flows based on detailed cash flow forecast prepared by the

relevant reporting unit market multiples and quoted market prices of relevant public companies If the fair value of

reporting unit is less than its carrying value an impairment loss if any is recorded for the difference between the

implied fair value and the carrying value of the reporting units goodwill

The Companys indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of trademarks and brands The estimated fair values of these

intangible assets are determined based on relief-of-royalty income approach derived from internally forecasted

revenues of the related products If the fair value of the trademark or brand is less than its carrying value an

impairment loss is recorded for the difference between the estimated fair value and carrying value of the intangible

asset

Amortization and impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets for the years ended December 31 2011 2010

and 2009 were as follows

In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Goodwill

Impairment 90000

Intangible Assets

Amortization 255338 207427 197469

Impairment 1006 15568

$255338 $208433 $303037

Income from discontinued operations included intangible asset amortization of $2176000 in 2011 $5567000 in

2010 and $5578000 in 2009

In 2011 the Company performed its annual goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment assessment

which resulted in no goodwill or intangible asset impairment charges

In 2010 the Company performed its annual goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment assessment

which resulted in $1006000 of intangible asset impairment charges
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Impairment

Charges

$90000

15568

285 2504 47848

183131 190467

______
186880

$12941 $1211558 $5197601

In the third quarter of 2009 the Company changed the date of its annual goodwill impairment assessment from the

first quarter to the third quarter This constituted change in the method of applying an accounting principle that the

Company believes is preferable as it better aligns the timing of the Companys goodwill impairment assessment

with the Companys annual business planning and forecasting process In the third quarter of 2009 the Company

performed its goodwill impairment assessment which resulted in charge of$12000000 related to the truck

remanufacturing and related parts and service reporting unit in the Transportation segment

In the first quarter of 2009 the Company performed its annual goodwill impairment assessment which resulted in

impairment charges of $60000000 related to the pressure sensitive adhesives reporting unit and $18000000 related

to the PC board fabrication reporting unit which are both included in the Power Systems Electronics segment

Also in 2009 intangible asset impairments of $15568000 were recorded related to certain trademarks brands and

patents Approximately $5800000 of this total charge related to the PC board fabrication reporting unit and the

remainder to various trademarks brands and patents of other reporting units

The impairments during 2009 were primarily related to new reporting units which were acquired over the preceding

few years prior to the economic downturn in late 2008 and 2009 These charges were driven primarily by lower

forecasts compared to the expected forecasts at the time the reporting units were acquired

summary of goodwill and intangible assets that were adjusted to fair value and the related impairment charges

included in earnings for 2009 is as follows

Total

In Thousands Book Value Fair Value

Goodwill $449000 $359000

Intangible assets 98544 82976

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 were

as follows

Power

Transpor- Systems industrial Food Construction Polymers Decorative All

In Thousands tation Electronics Packaging Equipment Products Fluids Surfaces Other Total

Balance Dec 31 2009 $538271 420829 $765179 $209025 $558504 $739101 $13405 $1532799 $4777113

2010 activity

Acquisitions divestitures 50800 4554 1242 2676 10817 84097 37122 191308

Impairment charges

Foreign currency translation 4456 3808 2133 7408 16584 1020 179 6065 3397

Intersegment goodwill transfers 17945 292 936
_______ 962 22252

______
3989

Balance Dec 31 2010 566670 428899 769490 204293 584943 844430 13226 1559867 4971818

2011 activity

Acquisitions divestitures 118286 242257 25166 1175 5515 49843 24206 464098

Impairment charges

Foreign currency translation 9514 2233 11252 4579 216 17265

Transfer of assets held for sale 7336

Intersegment goodwill transfers 1464 341857 156441 _______ ____________________

Balance Dec 31 2011 $676906 $1003444 $783404 $198539 $590242 $720567
______ __________________

Accumulated goodwill impairment

charges Dec 31 2011 36276 87696 $114079 59797 6574 14821 46484 365727
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Intangible assets as of December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

2011 2010

Accumulated Accumulated

In Thousands Cost Amortization Net Cost Amortization Net

Amortizable intangible assets

Customer lists and relationships $1608027 522155 $1085872 $1252748 412482 840266

Patents and proprietary technology 561205 235618 325587 467226 210359 256867

Trademarks and brands 699.586 157373 542213 467838 119010 348828

Software 201009 172058 28951 199560 154188 45372

Noncompete agreements 181379 148088 33291 158363 135754 22609

Other 116994 102274 14720 110105 92984 17121

Total amortizable intangible assets 3368200 1337566 2030634 2655840 1124777 1531063

Indefinite-lived intangible assets

Trademarks and brands 202744
____________

202744 199953
____________

199953

Total intangible assets $3570944 $l337566 $2233378 $2855793 $l124777 $1731016

Amortizable intangible assets are being amortized primarily on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

of to 20 years

The estimated amortization expense of intangible assets for the future years ending is as follows

In Thousands

2012 $258868

2013 237114

2014 222619

2015 211273

2016 200043

Other Assets as of December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

In Thousands 2011 2010

Cash surrender value of life insurance policies $370564 $362401

Customer tooling 81415 76765

Prepaid pension assets 40687 16023

Noncurrent receivables 29807 38740

Other 112582 122818

$635055 $616747
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Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits The Company has both funded and unfunded defined benefit

pension and other postretirement benefit plans predominately in the U.S covering majority of U.S employees

The U.S primary pension plan provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary The U.S primary

postretirement healthcare plan is contributory with the participants contributions adjusted annually The U.S

primary postretirement life insurance plan is noncontributory

Beginning January 2007 the U.S primary pension and other postretirement benefit plans were closed to new

participants Newly hired employees and employees from acquired businesses that are not participating in these

plans are eligible for additional Company contributions under the existing U.S primary defined contribution

retirement plans The Companys expense related to defined contribution plans was $77700000 in 2011

$69300000 in 2010 and $66000000 in 2009

In addition to the U.S plans the Company also has defined benefit pension plans in certain other countries mainly

the United Kingdom Switzerland Germany and Canada

Summarized information regarding the Companys significant defined benefit pension and other postretirement

benefit plans related to both continuing and discontinued operations is as follows

Net periodic benefit cost was included in the statement of income as follows

Pension

2011 2010 2009
_______

89277 79980 56466

3458 2176 2407 _______ _______ _______

92735 82156 58873 _______ _______ _______

Pension

2011 2010 2009In Thousands

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization of actuarial loss

Amortization of prior service cost income

Amortization of transition amount

Settlement/curtailment loss income

Other Postretirement Benefits

2011 2010 2009

94100 94104

116331 110484

157848 149822

39359 26092

777 736

16 47

515

92735 82156

$13430

29532

20564

415

6448

$13941

29995

18183

40

6445

97950

120109

154254

8436

1585

164

11947

58873

$12567

30506

13612

40

6423

In Thousands

lncome from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations

$29261 $32238 $35924

Other Postretirement Benefits

2011 2010 2009

$28916 $31860 $35560

345 378 364

$29261 $32238 $35924
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Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits

In Thousands 2011 2010 2011 2010

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at January $2300740 $2176568 $559423 533834

Service cost 94100 94104 13430 13941

Interest cost 116331 110484 29532 29995

Plan participants contributions 8100 4642 15273 15241

Actuarial loss 78634 31830 251 10824

Acquisitions 15882 30845

Benefits paid 142409 137753 47946 48465
Medicare subsidy received 3136 4053

Liabilities from to other immaterial plans 2409 6817 4074
Settlement/curtailment loss 515

Foreign currency translation 9169 17312 ________ ________

Benefit obligation at December 31 $2464618 $2300740 569025 559423

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at January $1940552 $1750904 293776 259753

Actual return on plan assets 108495 187688 3357 34023

Company contributions 130535 73720 32673 33224

Plan participants contributions 8100 4642 15273 15241

Acquisitions 15344 26115

Benefits paid 142409 137753 47946 48465
Assets from other immaterial plans 44860

Foreign currency translation 6706 9624

Fair value of plan assets at December31 $2053911 $1940552 297133 293776

Funded status 410707 360188 $271892 $265647

Other immaterial plans 63655 62664 7458 3105

Net liability at December31 474362 422852 5279350 5268752

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position as

of December 31 consist of

Assets held for sale 75

Other assets 40687 16023

Accrued expenses 21459 15378 7767 9025
Liabilities held for sale 12757
Other noncurrent liabilities 480908 423497 271583 259727

Net
liability

at end of year 474362 422852 5279350 $268752

The pre-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income consist of

Net actuarial loss gain 848368 758901 15406 1840
Prior service cost 3981 4758 4844 11292

Net transition obligation 52 68
_________ _________

852401 763727 20250 9452

Accumulated benefit obligation $2193199 $2084663

Plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets

as of December 31

Projected benefit obligation $1837761 $1722577

Accumulated benefit obligation $1665360 $1582158

Fair value of plan assets $1413557 $1379466
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Assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used in the valuations of pension and other postretirement benefits were as

follows

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at

December 31

Discount rate 4.64% 5.05% 5.57% 4.95% 5.45% 5.80%

Rate of compensation increases 3.86 3.94 4.18

Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for

years
ended December 31

Discount rate 5.05% 5.57% 6.59% 5.45% 5.80% 6.50%

Expected return on plan assets 7.39 7.63 8.28 7.00 7.00 7.00

Rate of compensation increases 3.94 4.18 4.19

The expected long-term rates of return for pension and other postretirement benefit plans were developed using

historical asset class returns while factoring in current market conditions such as inflation interest rates and asset

class performance

Assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for the postretirement health care

benefit plans The assumed health care cost trend rates used to determine the postretirement benefit obligation at

December 31 were as follows

2011 2010 2009

Health care cost trend rate assumed for the next year 8.50% 8.71% 8.21%

Ultimate trend rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Year the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2019 2020 2020

one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following impact

1-Percentage- 1-Percentage-

In Thousands Point Increase Point Decrease

Change in service cost and interest cost for 2011 964 1406

Change in postretirement benefit obligation at December31 2011 $14556 $17480

Plan Assets

The Companys overall investment strategy for the assets in the pension funds is to achieve balance between the

goals of growing plan assets and keeping risk at reasonable level over long-term investment horizon In order to

reduce unnecessary risk the pension funds are diversified across several asset classes securities and investment

managers The target allocations for plan assets are 50% to 65% equity securities 30% to 45% debt securities 0% to

2% real estate and 0% to 10% in other types of investments The Company does not use derivatives for the purpose

of speculation leverage circumventing investment guidelines or taking risks that are inconsistent with specified

guidelines

The assets in the Companys postretirement health care plan are primarily invested in life insurance policies The

Companys overall investment strategy for the assets in the postretirement health care fund is to invest in assets that

provide reasonable tax exempt rate of return while preserving capital

The following tables present the fair value of the Companys pension and other postretirement benefit plan assets at

December 31 2011 and 2010 by asset category and valuation methodology Level assets are valued using

unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets in active markets Level assets are valued using quoted prices or other

observable inputs for similar assets Level assets are valued using unobservable inputs but reflect the assumptions

market participants would be expected to use in pricing the assets Each financial instruments categorization is

based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement
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2011

In Thousands Level Level Level Total

Pension Plan Assets

Cash and equivalents 16466 16466

Equity securities

Domestic 56202 56202

Foreign 68290 68290

Fixed income securities

Government securities 217840 217840

Corporate debt securities 240032 4020 244052

Mortgage-backed securities 16418 16418

Investment contracts with insurance

companies 69285 69285

Commingled funds

Mutual funds 344891 344891

Collective trust funds 931735 931735

Partnerships/private equity interests 86869 86869

Other 916 947 1863

$485849 $1406941 $161121 $2053911

Other Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets

Cash and equivalents 33675 33675

Life insurance policies
_________ __________

263458 263458

33675 $263458 297133

2010

In Thousands Level Level Level Total

Pension Plan Assets

Cash and equivalents 49444 49444

Equity securities

Domestic 125884 125884

Foreign 161850 161850

Fixed income securities

Government securities 193940 1025 194965

Corporate debt securities 219546 2667 222213

Mortgage-backed securities 9621 9621

Investment contracts with insurance

companies 119976 119976

Commingled funds

Mutual funds 300716 300716

Collective trust funds 678082 678082

Partnerships/private equity interests 77587 77587

Other 204 10 214

$637894 $1221369 81289 $1940552

Other Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets

Cash and equivalents 28065 28065

Life insurance policies 265711 265711

28065 $265711 293776
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Cash and equivalents include cash on hand and investments with maturities of 90 days or less and are valued at cost

which approximates fair value Equity securities primarily include common and preferred equity securities covering

wide range of industries and geographies which are traded in active markets and are valued based on quoted prices

Fixed income securities primarily consist of U.S and foreign government bills notes and bonds corporate debt

securities asset-backed securities and investment contracts The majority of the assets in this category are valued by

evaluating bid prices provided by independent financial data services For securities where market data is not readily

available unobservable market data is used to value the security Commingled funds include investments in public

and private pooled funds Mutual funds are traded in active markets and are valued based on quoted prices The

underlying investments include small-cap equity international equity and long- and short-term fixed income

instruments Collective trust funds are private funds that are valued at the net asset value which is determined based

on the fair value of the underlying investments The underlying investments include both passively and actively

managed U.S and foreign large- and mid-cap equity funds and short-term investment funds Partnerships/private

equity interests are investments in partnerships where the benefit plan is limited partner The investments are

valued by the investment managers on periodic basis using pricing models that use market income and cost

valuation methods Life insurance policies are used to fund other postretirement benefits in order to obtain favorable

tax treatment and are valued based on the cash surrender value of the underlying policies

The following table presents reconciliation of Level assets measured at fair value for pension and other

postretirement benefit plans during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

2010 Activity

Realized gains losses 100 452 947

Unrealized gains losses 49 624 844

Purchases and sales 311 1137 3269
Transfers 1540

Balance Dec 31 2010 1025 2667

2011 Activity

Realized gains

Unrealized gains losses

Purchases and sales

Transfers 1025

Balance Dec 31 2011

Cash Flows

Other

Postretirement

Benefits

38849

39278

39866

40558

41338

218668

Investment

Corporate Mortgage- Contracts with Partnerships/ Life

Government Debt backed Insurance Private Equity Insurance

In Thousands Securities Securities Securities Companies Interests Policies Other Total

Balance Dec 31 2009 1285 $2092 $3372 $68847 $233042 $2226 $310864

3547 17 2231

538 32669 319 33869

5731 2518 1504

1540

77587 265711 10 347000

4092

7836

5897

245 59754

$86869 $263458 947 $424579

The Company generally funds its pension and other postretirement benefit plans as required by law or to the extent

such contributions are tax deductible The Company expects to contribute approximately $165000000 to its pension

plans and $39000000 to its other postretirement benefit plans in 2012

The Companys portion of the benefit payments that are expected to be paid during the years ending December 31 is

as follows

4088

118 5794

2000 2192

765

$4020

4398 2253 221

796 909

61299

$69285

In Thousands Pension

2012 181603

2013 169423

2014 174453

2015 181405

2016 187856

Years 2017-2021 1010684
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Short-Term Debt as of December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

InThousands
2011 2010

Bank overdrafts $37706 $57463

Commercial paper
192495

Current maturities of long-term debt 262343 252216

Otherborrowings 9519 16557

$502063 $326236

The Company has committed credit facilities that support the issuance of commercial paper See the Long-Term

Debt note for further discussion

The weighted-average interest rate on commercial paper was 0.1% at December 31 2011 Commercial paper is

stated at cost which approximates fair value

The weighted-average interest rate on other borrowings was 11.2% at December 31 2011 and 6.9% at December 31

2010

As of December 31 2011 the Company had unused capacity of approximately $329000000 under international

debt facilities

Accrued Expenses as of December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted of accruals for

InThousands
2011 2010

Compensation and employee benefits 550955 558340

Deferred revenue and customer deposits 245465 264472

Rebates 162019 137554

Warranties 55203 63665

Current portion of pension and other postretirement benefit obligations 29226 24403

Other 392735 342962

$1435603 $1391396

The Company accrues for product warranties based on historical experience The changes in accrued warranties

during 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

In Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Beginning balance $63665 $62366 $67490

Charges 47256 42907 44289

Provision charged to expense 37489 44652 35691

Acquisitions and divestitures 3262 690 1929

Foreign currency translation 239 1136 1545

Transfer to liabilities held for sale 1718

Ending balance $55203 $63665 $62366
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Long-Term Debt at December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

InThousands
2011 2010

6.55% preferred debt securities due December 31 2011 250000 249949
5.15% notes due April 12014 799693 799567
5.25% Euro notes due October 2014 971465 1002016
6.25% notes due April 12019 699912 699903

4.88% notes due thru December 31 2020 21954 21954
3.375% notes due September 15 2021 348476
4.875% notes due September 15 2041 640551

Other borrowings 18490 20914

3750541 2794303
Current maturities 262343 252216

$3488198 $2542087

In 2002 subsidiary of the Company issued $250000000 of 6.55% preferred debt securities at 99.849% of face

value The effective interest rate of the preferred debt securities is 6.7% These preferred debt securities were due

and fully paid on the first business day in 2012

In 2005 the Company issued $53735000 of 4.88% notes at 100% of face value

In 2007 the Company through wholly-owned European subsidiary issued750000000 of 5.25% Euro notes due

October 2014 at 99.874% of face value The effective interest rate of the notes is 5.3%

In 2009 the Company issued $800000000 of 5.15% redeemable notes due April 2014 at 99.92% of face value

and $700000000 of 6.25% redeemable notes due April 2019 at 99.98% of face value The effective interest rates

of the notes are 5.2% and 6.3% respectively

In 2011 the Company issued $350000000 of 3.375% notes due September 15 2021 at 99.552% of face value and

$650000000 of 4.875% notes due September 15 2041 at 98.539% of face value The effective interest rates of the

notes are 3.4% and 4.9% respectively These notes are senior unsecured obligations ranking equal in right of

payment with all other senior unsecured indebtedness of the Company

Other debt outstanding at December 31 2011 bears interest at rates ranging from 0.3% to 15.6% with maturities

through the year 2029

Based on market rates for comparable instruments the approximate fair value and related carrying value of the

Companys long-term debt including current maturities as of December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

2011 2010

In Thousands Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value

6.55% preferred debt securities due

December3l201l 250000 250000 263750 249949
5.15% notes due April 12014 876800 799693 882480 799567
5.25% Euro notes due October 12014 1064218 971465 1098412 1002016
6.25% notes due April 12019 871668 699912 816200 699903

4.88% notes due thru December 31 2020 24362 21954 23471 21954
3.375% notes due September 15 2021 367574 348476

4.875% notes due September 15 2041 760533 640551

Other borrowings 18490 18490 20914 20914

$4233645 $3750541 $3105227 $2794303

In 2007 the Company entered into $500000000 revolving credit facility with termination date of June 15 2012
In 2010 the Company entered into $1000000000 line of credit agreement with termination date of June Il
2013 and $1000000000 line of credit agreement with termination date of June 10 2011 which was replaced in

June of 2011 by $1000000000 line of credit with termination date of June 10 2016 The revolving credit

facility along with the lines of credit support the issuance of commercial paper No amounts were outstanding under

any of these facilities at December 31 2011
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The Companys debt agreements financial covenants limit total debt including guarantees to 50% of total

capitalization The Companys total debt including guarantees was 30.2% of total capitalization as defined in our

debt agreements as of December 31 2011 which was in compliance with these covenants

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt for the future years ending December 31 are as follows

in Thousands

2013 10077

2014 1776211

2015 2861

2016 675

2017 and future years 1698374

$3488198

At December 31 2011 the Company had open stand-by letters of credit of approximately $213000000

substantially all of which expire in 2012 and 2013

Other Noncurrent Liabilities at December 31 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

In Thousands 2011 2010

Pension benefit obligation 480908 423497

Postretirement benefit obligation 271583 259727

Other 615080 397559

$1367571 $1080783

Commitments and ContingenciesThe Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in

the ordinary course of business including those involving environmental product liability including toxic tort and

general liability claims The Company accrues for such liabilities when it is probable that future costs will be

incurred and such costs can be reasonably estimated Such accruals are based on developments to date the

Companys estimates of the outcomes of these matters and its experience in contesting litigating and settling other

similarmatters The Company believes resolution of these matters individually and in the aggregate will not have

material adverse effect on the Companys financial position liquidity or future operations

Among the toxic tort cases in which the Company is defendant the Company as well as its subsidiaries Hobart

Brothers Company and Miller Electric Mfg Co have been named along with numerous other defendants in

lawsuits alleging injury from exposure to welding consumables The plaintiffs in these suits claim unspecified

damages for injuries resulting from the plaintiffs alleged exposure to asbestos manganese andlor toxic fumes in

connection with the welding process Based upon the Companys experience in defending these claims the Company

believes that the resolution of these proceedings will not have material adverse effect on the Companys operating

results financial position or cash flows The Company has not recorded any significant reserves related to these

cases

Preferred Stock without par value of which 300000 shares are authorized is issuable in series The Board of

Directors is authorized to fix by resolution the designation and characteristics of each series of preferred stock The

Company has no present commitment to issue its preferred stock

59



Notes to Financial Statements Continued

Common Stock with par value of $.01 Additional Paid-In-Capital and Common Stock Held in Treasury

transactions during 2011 2010 and 2009 are shown below

In Thousands except
shares

Balance December 31 2008

During 2009

Shares issued for stock options

Shares issued for stock compensation and

vesting of restricted stock

Stock compensation expense

Noncontrolling interest

Tax benefits related to stock options

Tax benefits related to defined contribution plans

Balance December 31 2009

During 2010

Shares issued for stock options

Shares issued for stock compensation and

vesting of restricted stock

Stock compensation expense

Noncontrolling interest

Tax benefits related to stock options

Tax benefits related to defined contribution plans

Repurchases of common stock

Balance December31 2010

During 2011

Shares issued for stock options

Shares issued for stock compensation and

vesting of restricted stock

Stock compensation expense

Tax benefits related to stock options

Tax benefits related to defined contribution plans

Repurchases of common stock

Balance December31 2011

Authorized December31 2011

On May 2011 the Companys Board of Directors authorized new stock repurchase program which provides for

the buyback of up to an additional $4000000000 of the Companys common stock over an open-ended period of

time the 2011 Program Through December 31 2011 the Company made repurchases of 1827253 shares of its

common stock at an average price of $43.20 As of December 31 2011 there was approximately $3900000000 of

authorized repurchases remaining under the 2011 Program

Cash Dividends declared were $1.40 per share in 2011 $1.30 per share in 2010 and $1.24 per share in 2009 Cash

dividends paid were $1.38 per share in 2011 $1.27 per share in 2010 and $1.24 per share in 2009

Additional

Common Stock Paid-In-Capital Common Stock Held in Treasury

Shares Amount Amount Shares Amount

531789730 $5318 $105497 32674759 $l390594

3204212 32 101581

17018 120

51858

2591

11416

3104

535010960 5350 270985 32674759 1390594

3445891 34 113592

48931 1217 1998 88
56443

287

15619

3237

8084724 350000

5385 460806 40761481 1740682

39 151431

1629 24796 1514

56374

538505782

3932861

61792

542500435

700000000

12594

3321

18106109 950000

$5425 $686155 58892386 $2692 196

On August 20 2007 the Companys Board of Directors authorized stock repurchase program which provides for

the buyback of up to $3000000000 of the Companys common stock over an open-ended period of time the 2007

Program Under the 2007 Program the Company made repurchases of 8084724 shares of its common stock at an

average price of $43.29 per share during 2010 and 16278856 shares of its common stock at an average price of

$53.51 per share during 2011 As of December 31 2011 there were no authorized repurchases remaining under the

2007 Program
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Comprehensive income is defined as the changes in equity during

period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources It includes all changes in

equity during period except those resulting from investments by stockholders and distributions to stockholders The

changes in accumulated other comprehensive income during 2011 2010 and 2009 were as follows

InThousands 2011 2010 2009

Beginning balance $427155 $248959 10118

Foreign currency translation adjustments 140521 153230 301112

Pension and other postretirement benefits actuarial gains losses

net oftax of $53568 in 2011 $2978 in 2010 and $23213

in 2009 93156 3543 71197
Amortization of unrecognized pension and other postretirement

benefits costs net of tax of $16506 in 2011 $1 1956 in

2010 and $5089 in 2009 30745 21423 8357

Pension and other postretirement benefits settlements

curtailments and other net of tax of $0 in 2011 $0 in 2010

and $225 in 2009 569

Ending balance $224223 $427155 $248959

Foreign currency translation adjustments for the year ended December 31 2011 is net of $55297000 increase for

the resolution of an issue with the Internal Revenue Service in the U.S related to deduction for foreign exchange

losses on an intercompany loan

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the ending balance of accumulated comprehensive income consisted of

cumulative translation adjustment income of $773367000 and $913888000 respectively and unrecognized

pension and other postretirement benefits costs of $549144000 and $486733000 respectively The estimated

unrecognized benefit cost that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic

benefit cost in 2012 is $52638000 for pension and $3337000 for other postretirement benefits

Stock-Based Compensation Stock options and restricted stock units have been issued to officers and other

management employees under ITWs 2011 Long-Term Incentive Plan the Plan The stock options generally vest

over four-year period and have maturity of ten years from the issuance date Restricted stock units generally vest

after three-year period and include units with and without performance criteria To cover the exercise of vested

options and vesting of restricted stock units the Company generally issues new shares from its authorized but

unissued share pool At December 31 2011 51244986 shares of ITW common stock were reserved for issuance

under the Plan The Company records compensation expense for the grant date fair value of stock awards over the

remaining service periods of those awards

The following summarizes the Companys stock-based compensation expense

InThousands 2011 2010 2009

Pre-tax compensation expense 56374 56443 51858

Tax benefit 17343 17822 15565
Total stock-based compensation recorded as expense net of tax 39031 38621 36293

Of the pre-tax compensation expense $845000 $783000 and $729000 were included in income from discontinued

operations for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The following table summarizes activity related to non-vested restricted stock units during 2011

Weighted-

Average

Number of Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Unvested January 2011 1721481 $34.84

Granted 589772 51.73

Vested 34630 34.38

Cancelled 102175 38.36

Unvested December31 2011 2174448 39.27
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The following table summarizes stock option activity under the Plan for the year ended December 31 2011

Weighted-

Average

Weighted- Remaining Aggregate

Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic

Shares Exercise Price Term Value

Under option January 12011 19655417 $44.08

Granted 2008104 55.92

Exercised 4055853 39.06

Cancelled or expired 156838 47.58

Under option December3l2Oll 17450830 46.57 5.81 years $42603214

Exercisable December31 2011 12036884 46.25 4.92 years $26125945

On February 10 2012 the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved an annual equity award

consisting of stock options restricted stock units RSUs and performance restricted stock units PRSUs The

RSUs provide for full cliff vesting three years from the date of grant The PRSUs provide for full cliff vesting

after three years if the Compensation Committee certifies that the performance goals set with respect to the PRSU
have been met Upon vesting the holder will receive one share of common stock of the Company for each vested

RSU or PRSU Option exercise prices are equal to the common stock fair market value on the date of grant Stock

options were granted on 1758420 shares at an exercise price of $55.71 per
share Additionally 550308 RSUs and

PRSUs were issued at the grant date share price of $55.71 The fair value of RSUs and PRSUs is determined by

reducing the closing market price on the date of the grant by the present value of projected dividends over the

vesting period The Company uses binomial option pricing model to estimate the fair value of the stock options

granted The following summarizes the assumptions used in the models

2012 2011 2010

Risk-free interest rate 0.2-2.1% 0.3-3.8% 0.4-3.9%

Weighted-average volatility 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Dividendyield 2.61% 2.80% 2.78%

Expected years until exercise 7.6-7.8 7.6-7.9 7.5-7.8

Lattice-based option valuation models such as the binomial option pricing model incorporate ranges of

assumptions for inputs The risk-free rate of interest for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on

zero-coupon U.S government instrument over the contractual term of the equity instrument Expected volatility is

based on implied volatility from traded options on the Companys stock and historical volatility of the Companys
stock The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise timing and employee termination rates within

the valuation model The weighted-average dividend yield is based on historical information The expected term of

options granted is derived from the output of the option valuation model and represents the period of time that

options granted are expected to be outstanding The
ranges presented result from separate groups

of employees

assumed to exhibit different behavior

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during 2012 2011 2010 and 2009 was $11.48

$12.34 $9.59 and $10.24 per share respectively The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the years

ended December 31 20112010 and 2009 was $63480000 $56191000 and $38609000 respectively As of

December 31 2011 there was $27762000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock

options That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 2.4 years Exercise of options

during the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 resulted in cash receipts of$15l470000 $113627000

and $101613000 respectively The total fair value of vested stock option awards during the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $32955000 $29545000 and $38999000 respectively

As of December 31 2011 there was $27402000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested

restricted stock units That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average remaining contractual life of

1.7 years The total fair value of vested restricted stock unit awards during the
years

ended December 2011 and

2010 was $1191000 and $632000 respectively
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Segment Information The Company has 52 operating segments which are aggregated from the Companys

approximately 800 operations in 58 countries These businesses are internally reported as 52 operating segments to

senior management The Companys 52 operating segments have been aggregated into the following eight external

reportable segments Transportation Power Systems Electronics Industrial Packaging Food Equipment

Construction Products Polymers Fluids Decorative Surfaces and All Other

Transportation Transportation-related components fasteners fluids and polymers as well as truck

remanufacturing and related parts and service

Power Systems Electronics Equipment and consumables associated with specialty power conversion

metallurgy and electronics

Industrial Packaging Steel plastic and paper products and equipment used for bundling shipping and protecting

goods in transit

Food Equipment Commercial food equipment and related service

Construction Products Tools fasteners and other products for construction applications

Polymers Fluids Adhesives sealants lubrication and cutting fluids and hygiene products

Decorative Surfaces Decorative surfacing materials for furniture office and retail space countertops and other

applications

All Other All other operating segments
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Segment information for 2011 2010 and 2009 was as follows

InThousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues

Transportation 3108349 2522226 2092249
Power Systems Electronics 2872161 2409204 2004402
Industrial Packaging 2612108 2272059 1940887
Food Equipment 1982187 1857051 1862950
Construction Products 1958370 1753485 1547365

Polymers Fluids 1364004 1106025 980305

Decorative Surfaces 1083157 987692 971900
All Other 2889699 2598475 2238604

Intersegment revenues 83452 90525 65666
$17786583 $15415692 $13572996

Operating income

Transportation 474592 369454 155373

Power Systems Electronics 580674 469244 198673

Industrial Packaging 273342 231303 95128
Food Equipment 303771 255060 255891

Construction Products 225448 192070 104795

Polymers Fluids 208873 188696 150065

Decorative Surfaces 132394 117333 113227

All Other 531914 430857 309811

2731008 2254017 1382963

Depreciation and amortization and impairment of goodwill and

intangible assets

Transportation 25988 97784 114865

Power Systems Electronics 87346 78523 171065

Industrial Packaging 72244 69513 71564
Food Equipment 49655 44446 42472
Construction Products 58084 59496 75007

Polymers Fluids 48889 38942 40174
Decorative Surfaces 21946 20353 23958
All Other 129857 139729 145736

594009 548786 684841

Plant and equipment additions

Transportation 97735 70743 50006
Power Systems Electronics 42623 25849 24776
Industrial Packaging 27969 34324 27151

Food Equipment 35859 30847 39039
Construction Products 37332 27823 31280

Polymers Fluids 22053 13283 9417
Decorative Surfaces 22590 23490 12671

All Other 67247 61400 61399

353408 287759 255739
Identifiable assets

Transportation 2657457 1946633
Power Systems Electronics 2407644 1903321
Industrial Packaging 1933782 1889068
Food Equipment 1022380 1030913
Construction Products 1504850 1488119

Polymers Fluids 1411665 1336996
Decorative Surfaces 399915 386398
All Other 2644120 2995165

Corporate 3615377 3435698
Assets held for sale 386324

____________

$17983514 $16412311
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Identifiable assets by segment are those assets that are specifically used in that segment Corporate assets are

principally cash and equivalents investments and other general corporate assets For 2010 reclassification has

been made to identifiable assets by segment to correct the allocation of $743244000 of deferred income taxes

between Corporate and the Companys segments

Enterprise-wide information for 2011 2010 and 2009 was as follows

InThousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating Revenues by Geographic Region

United States 7379219 6461993 5708035

Europe 5491704 4806027 4507939

Asia 1931607 1697969 1241173

Other North America 1161179 1018034 821409

Australia/New Zealand 884660 780416 699945

Other 938214 651253 594495

$17786583 $15415692 $13572996

Operating revenues by geographic region are based on the customers location

The Company has thousands of product lines within its businesses therefore providing operating revenues by

product line is not practicable

Total noncurrent assets excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments were $10159000000 and

$9456000000 at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively Of these amounts approximately 52% and 49% was

attributed to U.S operations for 2011 and 2010 respectively The remaining amounts were attributed to the

Companys foreign operations with no single country accounting for significant portion
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QUARTERLY AND COMMON STOCK DATA Unaudited

Quarterly Financial Data

The unaudited quarterly financial data included as supplementary data reflects all adjustments that are in the

opinion of management necessary for fair statement of the results for the interim periods presented

Three Months Ended

June30 September30 December31

In Thousands except per share amounts 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Operating revenues $4614914 $3928036 $4580516 $3941124 $4319308 $3913748

Cost of revenues 2996014 2514222 2961497 2548451 2798365 2606132

Operating income 711050 626035 714284 619725 647082 482582

Income from continuing

operations

Income from discontinued

operations

Net income

Income per share from

continuing operations

Basic

Diluted

Net income per share

Basic 1.00 0.82

Diluted 0.99 0.81

In the first quarter of 2011 the Company recorded favorable discrete non-cash tax benefit of $165.9 million or

$0.33 per share associated with an Australian tax matter

ITEM Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures

Controls and Procedures

The Companys management with the participation of the Companys Chairman Chief Executive Officer and

Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer has evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15e as of December 31 2011 Based on such

evaluation the Companys Chairman Chief Executive Officer and Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer

have concluded that as of December 31 2011 the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective

Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm are found in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

In connection with the evaluation by management including the Companys Chairman Chief Executive Officer

and Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer no changes in the Companys internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15f during the quarter ended December 31 2011 were identified

that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over

financial reporting

ITEM 9B Other Information

Not applicable

March31

2011 2010

$4271845 $3632764

2762009 2327863

658592 525675

606237 321296 483529 399792 490133 403054 437115 328296

16903 12509 14.901 11664 17484 18974 5082 7367

623140 333805 498430 411456 507617 422028 442197 335663

1.22 0.64 0.97 0.79

1.21 0.64 0.96 0.79

1.25 0.66

1.24 0.66

1.01 0.80 0.90 0.66

1.00 0.80 0.90 0.66

1.04 0.84 0.91 0.68

1.04 0.84 0.91 0.67
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PART HJ

ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information regarding the Directors of the Company is incorporated by reference from the information under the

captions Election of Directors and Corporate Governance Policies and Practices in the Companys Proxy

Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Information regarding the Audit Committee and its Financial Experts is incorporated by reference from the

information under the captions Board of Directors and Its Committees and Audit Committee Report in the

Companys Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Information regarding the Executive Officers of the Company can be found in Part of this Annual Report on Form

10-K under the caption Executive Officers

Information regarding compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference from the

information under the caption Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Companys Proxy

Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Information regarding the Companys code of ethics that applies to the Companys Chairman Chief Executive

Officer Senior Vice President ChiefFinancial Officer and key financial and accounting personnel is incorporated

by reference from the information under the caption Corporate Governance Policies and Practices in the

Companys Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

This information is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions Executive Compensation

Director Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Compensation Committee Report in the

Companys Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

This information is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions Ownership of ITW Stock

and Equity Compensation Plan Information in the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference from the

information under the captions Ownership of ITW Stock Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and

Corporate Governance Policies and Practices in the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders

Information regarding director independence is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions

Corporate Governance Policies and Practices and Categorical Standards for Director Independence in the

Companys Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meetings of Stockholders

ITEM 14 PrincipalAccounting Fees and Services

This information is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption Ratification of the

Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2012

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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PART IV

ITEM 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

The following information is included as part of Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Statement of Income

Statement of Income Reinvested in the Business

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Not applicable

Exhibits

See the Exhibit Index within this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ii Pursuant to Regulation S-K Item 601 b4iii the Company has not filed with Exhibit any debt

instruments for which the total amount of securities authorized thereunder is less than 10% of the total

assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis as of December 31 2011 with the

exception of the agreements related to the 5.15% Notes due 2014 the 6.25% Notes due 2019 the 3.375%

Notes due 2021 and the 4.875% Notes due 2041 which are described as Exhibit numbers 4a through

in the Exhibit Index The Company agrees to furnish copy of the agreement related to the debt

instruments which have not been filed with Exhibit to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon

request
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on this 17th day of

February 2012

ILLINOIS TOOL WORKS INC

By Is DAVID SPEER

David Speer

Jhairnian ChiefExecutive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on this 17th day of February 2012

Signatures Title

Is DAVID SPEER Chairman Chief Executive Officer

David Speer Principal Executive Officer

Is RONALD KROPP Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer

Ronald Kropp Principal Financial Officer

Is RANDALL SCHEJINEMAN Vice President ChiefAccounting Officer

Randall Scheuneman Principal Accounting Officer

DANIEL BRUTTO Director

SUSAN CROWN Director

DON DAVIS JR Director

ROBERT MCCORMACK Director

ROBERT MORRISON Director

JAMES SKINNER Director

DAVID SMITH JR Director

PAMELA STROBEL Director

KEVIN WARREN Director

ANRE WILLIAMS Director

By Is DAVID SPEER

David Speer as Attorney-in-Fact

Original powers of attorney authorizing David Speer to sign the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K and

amendments thereto on behalf of the above-named directors of the registrant have been filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K Exhibit 24
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EXHIBIT INDEX

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

2011

Exhibit

Number Description

3a Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Illinois Tool Works Inc filed as Exhibit 3a to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31 2006 CommissionFile

No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

3b By-laws of Illinois Tool Works Inc as amended and restated as of February 10 2012 filed as Exhibit

to the Companys Form 8-K filed on February 13 2012 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated

herein by reference

4a Indenture between Illinois Tool Works Inc and The First National Bank of Chicago as Trustee dated as

of November 1986 filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on

January 15 1999 Commission File No 333-70691 and incorporated herein by reference

4b First Supplemental Indenture between Illinois Tool Works Inc and Harris Trust and Savings Bank as

Trustee dated as of May 1990 filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form

S-3 filed on January 15 1999 Commission File No 333-7069 and incorporated herein by reference

4c Officers Certificate dated March 26 2009 establishing the terms and setting forth the forms of the

5.15% Notes due 2014 and the 6.25% Notes due 2019 filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on March 27 2009 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by

reference

4d Registration Rights Agreement dated March 26 2009 by and among the Company and HSBC Securities

USA Inc and Bane of America Securities LLC filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on March 27 2009 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

4e Officers Certificate dated August 31 2011 establishing the terms and setting forth the forms of the

3.375% Notes due 2021 and the 4.875% Notes due 2041 filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Companys Form 8-K

filed on September 2011 Commission File No 00 1-04797 and incorporated herein by reference

4f Registration Rights Agreement dated August 31 2011 by and among the Company and J.P Morgan

Securities LLC and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on September 2011 Commission File No 001-04797 and incorporated

herein by reference

lOa Illinois Tool Works Inc 1996 Stock Incentive Plan dated February 16 1996 as amended on December 12

1997 October 29 1999 January 2003 March 18 2003 January 2004 December 10 2004 and

December 2005 filed as Exhibit 10a to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2005 CommissionFile No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

lOb Illinois Tool Works Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan dated February 10 2006 as amended on May 2006

filed as Exhibit 10a to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarterly period ended

March 31 2006 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

10c Amendment to Illinois Tool Works Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan dated February 2008 filed as

Exhibit 10q to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31

2007 CommissionFile No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

lOd Second Amendment to Illinois Tool Works Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan dated February 13 2009 filed

as Exhibit 10d to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31

2008 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

10e Illinois Tool Works Inc 2011 Long-Term Incentive Plan filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on December 16 2010 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein

by reference

10f Form of stock option terms filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

December 16 2004 and incorporated herein by reference

0g Form of stock option terms filed as Exhibit 10m to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the fiscal year ended December 31 2006 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by

reference

70



Exhibit

Number
Description

10h Form of stock option terms filed as Exhibit 10o to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the fiscal year ended December 31 2007 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by
reference

10i Form of stock option terms filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

February 2009 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

l0j Form of stock option terms filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

February 2011 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

0k Form of stock option terms filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

February 2012 CommissionFile No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

lOl Form of restricted stock unit terms filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on February 2009 CommissionFile No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

10m Form of restricted stock unit terms filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on February 2011 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

10n Form of restricted stock unit terms filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on February 2012 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

l0o Form of qualifying or performance restricted stock unit terms filed as Exhibit 10j to the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 26 2010 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated

herein by reference

10p Form of performance restricted stock unit terms filed as Exhibit 99.3 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on February 2011 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

10q Form of performance restricted stock unit terms filed as Exhibit 99.3 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on February 2012 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

0r Form of company-wide growth plan grant filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on March 2010 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

10s Form of company-wide growth plan grant filed as Exhibit 99.4 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on February 2011 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

l0t Form of company-wide growth plan grant filed as Exhibit 99.4 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on February 2012 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

0u Illinois Tool Works Inc Executive Incentive Plan adopted February 16 1996 filed as Exhibit 10a to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 1996 Commission
File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

0v Illinois Tool Works Inc 2011 Executive Incentive Plan filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on December 16 2010 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein

by reference

10w Illinois Tool Works Inc 1982 Executive Contributory Retirement Income Plan adopted December 13

1982 filed as Exhibit 10c to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended

December 31 1990 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

10x Illinois Tool Works Inc 1985 Executive Contributory Retirement Income Plan adopted December 1985
filed as Exhibit 10d to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December

31 1990 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

lOy Amendment to the Illinois Tool Works Inc 1985 Executive Contributory Retirement Income Plan dated

May 1996 filed as Exhibit 10c to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarterly

period ended June 30 1996 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference
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Exhibit

Number Description

0z Illinois Tool Works Inc Executive Contributory Retirement Income Plan as amended and restated

effective January 2010 filed as exhibit 10 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

November 2009 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

10aa Illinois Tool Works Inc Nonqualified Pension Plan effective January 2008 as amended and approved

by the Board of Directors on December 22 2008 filed as Exhibit 10p to the Companys Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 Commission File No 1-4797 and

incorporated herein by reference

10bb Illinois Tool Works Inc 2011 Change-in-Control Severance Compensation Policy filed as Exhibit 99.3 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 16 2010 Commission File No 1-4797

and incorporated herein by reference

10cc Illinois Tool Works Inc Directors Deferred Fee Plan effective May 2006 as amended and approved by

the Board of Directors on February 2007 filed as Exhibit 10h to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31 2006 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated

herein by reference

0dd Amendment to the Illinois Tool Works Inc Directors Deferred Fee Plan effective February 2008 filed

as Exhibit 0j to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31

2007 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

0ee Illinois Tool Works Inc Phantom Stock Plan for Non-Officer Directors as approved by the Board of

Directors on December 2008 filed as Exhibit 10s to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 CommissionFile No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by

reference

lOfl Illinois Tool Works Inc 2011 Cash Incentive Plan filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed

on May 12 2011 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein by reference

21 Subsidiaries and Affiliates of the Company

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 Powers of Attorney

31 Rule l3a-l4a Certifications

32 Section 1350 Certification

99a Description of the capital stock of Illinois Tool Works Inc filed as Exhibit 99a to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed on February 26 2010 Commission File No 1-4797 and incorporated herein

by reference

lOl Interactive Data File

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T this information is deemed not filed or part of registration

statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and is deemed not filed

for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and is otherwise not subject to liability under

these sections
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1isdthcultto utcncxactvluocnlOOeatbolcocsal

iespaiobtht utwocan odldcflystateth1we

have made nsitwe iforuice Ii lit communities

wtoiewc do uslncssbydcnatngthcUsaidsOf

voluntici iour nkind don itlor and tens of millions

OfdCllaritO1.uILUcl educati na aid hurnanitanan

organfrahons dodicatcd to advancing society prmarly

hro qhttellWlouniaton Whcr tconestooui

own opetatuor we hav co issdorvi compl ann

mitt ocalandnatonalreguatcnstlemu rum

thaflcompanynndo So ivhlemaintaninj at

ex cptiona ly strong phik th o1y iund ove arc
we hae lso bow levc lop ng ograms that actively

promo ho ety heath and ca eer opportunities

Cu mpk1u.s We have ak tablushed sovc ral

cbust duce governat isiress ethuca

today wrccog vetiatamotefcnnalzed goal

dmen ioachtomanagingourumpactontho

any tonmont must to part of ou stor gong Ic ward

1n2011 ver adsgnlucan nwstments iwt

b-tsed data colkctlcn system and improved ouu

scores bum tough urdc pen Jent orgsnvat ons .lke

tilt Carbon Disclosurs Prcjsct But as agoba

manufac wing usiness wc acknowledge tha

our eni ug con0umption and the grocnhouso gas

emusson at tesult is one of oui most complex and

uuqentchalengs Wth ths in mind we are pleased to

anno inca xii lust near term enuronurenlal

WuthnfI erarb 2016 wepar toredrotheenorgy

ntensty tesult ng greer hot.se gas err ussions at

ou ten irgcst onrrg to s1.nnung bus ncssss by

20 xxnt



VV mc ostnb ished rewf at modest reduet

Thrc et because heteve more reahaTh and

attanable Than vague or sweep ng ong term go

Grven the log shoal cl1alIerge rnhr rer rn our globaL

der entratar atru lure we kr ow that smaler steps

ire ie beTh way to help bnng tIre many nd ml

uHnecses th it make up 11W rm an era ol greater

errarronmental aeeountahrht We wrl auppo them by

ro\ ng resoure SL StaThgc Saorenrj

mg am iiakrr rt easrer sh ire eo lapetc nc rca

and encourang applreihor of the ITW Loolbox

Although we an long ourne ahead 11W putt ng

the right tools and processes place to ars

du here our carhon footprrnt smal or and well

naged Creatrmg lawer mpact no sustarnable

hL arocea opratrans ent ust he rg ttr Ia it

esicent to see ng our way tI rougl to another 100

ce 11W relrem on aatura resources to nanL facture

rc of ts or uets an we have an nterest

ieveloprng sustainable practrsos and preservrng the

ener onment or future gerreratrono More energy

f1rcrent manufacturing also savms money whreh turr

contr butes ro ofrtab growth and shareholder value

Who nrnrc rem ye eahlr nmer civ
eltrcicnl

cv onenta enewablc enc rgy te hnology ad

prod acts eseentra to FED mrl rtred or prom rr

coristruotron compr se rqhly pronrrs ng irarket Is

TW Sustarnabe products and processes also help

cv aaeet tIre needs the many customers lookr ag to

reduce oncrqy costs ard do busrrress wrth company

they can ml good about Ws posrtron near the

top the prude cton and auppl caarn creates an

cxc lent opportunrty for us ta or able cc ta

ogress and utmatoly Inve change or every

eontrnent For an rr depth ooe rI our 010 see

tle osc tudy an nag

We would also ike to tame th portunrry to hank

or the men arid women of 11W over Ire arid for

your dedreatron to local mr nur os or for koepr

1s value close Your dcc your rntogr ty ar

your generosity have heped cv emarn cc po aarf Ic

porate crtrze or lOt yr ar ad we ook forwor

to cc err brighter future

V9
Davd Parry

Vrce Charr man
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if is publicly traded divrrsitied industrial

manufacturing company her dquartered in Glenview

II Our company is comprised of many independent

decentraii7ed usine55e operating in countries

on six continents hese bum messes are organizc.d

into 32 operating segments Nhich are aggregatrv

into eight reportir seginentt Tranmportation

Industi al Packaging Powei Systems Electronics

Food Equipment Construction Products Polymers

and Fluids Decorative Surfar os and all other 1W

products serving industrial onsumer and electronic

end markets TWs primary brands include Deltar

ShaKeproof Acme Signode Hobart Miter Vulcan

Paslode Ramset Plexus Dr nsit Wilsonart Hi Cone

astex and Avery Weigh Trt nix As detailed in

oui 2011 financial annual report pg percont of the

companys revenues were gencrated from sales to

customers outside of the United States

Fcr

Given the decentiolized structure of ifW and the

diverse markets it serves we use OWs signature

80/20 pnnoiple to detormin what types of

corporate social esponsibility informaton we can

reasonably collect from our businesses and with

the greatest relevance to our stakeholders We

report on an annual cycle the previous report was

dated 2010 and the ieporting period for th report

is January December 31 2011 The reporting

boundary includes companies over which ITW has

operational control with the exception of leased

nonmanLiracruring facilities and joint ventures

Eighty eight percent of liWs required facilities have

provided information for the 2011 reporting year

If you havr questions about the content of the ITW

Corporate Social Responsibility Report contact us

at abs ctitwcom

cc



If Ws Board of Directors hm established clear and extensive guidelines that ensure

our company is governed in manner that serves the into ests of our shareholdei

employees and othei stake iolders he Gorpoi ate Coven ancr Guidelines dot xl

responsibilities communicati compensation succession plouning and the

term lim ts selection and evaluation of board rnen bers The guidelines reflect our

expectation of tbsolute integrity and responsibility and our insistence on constant

oversight and avoidance of conflicts of interests

Dii me our founding TW has unwaveringly operated ur dci higheat eths ci

eta daid he ITW de of Ethics reflects our strong commitment to hoiiet business

dealings ceo
pi

ovices explicit direction to our top xecritive oificei ane oil key nanciol

porso mel who have iesponsibilities in so nection with financial infoirriation and data

he code details our principles regarding honest and ethical dealings and confle of

inteiost full Cii end tiiiiely disclosure government compliance intei nd repoiliug

and adherence to the Code ot Ethics

Whereas the Code 5th cc app es irnerily to ITW executim ffice cud sen or

linanci leadership the Statement of Prir ciples of Conduct do cribes the expected

standard of behavior overuinq all SW employees md nmuaqers regardles the

tjpe of bus nes wheie is ocated lii 2t 11 fW initi ited new Co ifi icr tie

up oyrv helpline to eport possible ethics violations directly to designated fW

daft The helpiine here led by third party service ovider icsPoint provides en

aitci native foi crop oyoe not cornlortable rope tirx or mndl nq cc nec rris at IC mci

nusiness unit As 11W expands gohally the helplii piovides ofliei way for us

mSntairi our high ctandard of business conduct



To 0mb th probi of bnb ry and corruption nforce trict ob Anti

orruption Pot th appli ITW divi on ub idia nt con ult nt

an ftili

rtlcipat ppropn teiy nd gaily in polItical dvo round th glob to

dvanc polici that support our in op rations Particip don by

two prof onals 1TW corpor te he dquartr In addition to advo any

th company op to one ctive polItIcal tion committ th illinoi ool Work fo

Better Gov rnmerit ommitt whi participa Ily in th ale tion proc

wi bin th United tate nd funded ntirely by volunt ry contribution from mpt

mploy ITW intains full tran ency of it involv nt in dvoc cy

ctiviti and at any tim the put lic may eports filcd with th fed ral

rnment outlining th company ctivit

to our govern nc nd eth police

in tail pie vi thn ln or Than

ton ww
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Vcrc Offc

Rospor bS cm pe ate citizor ship as been an

mportant irt of 1W 100 yea It core

npany lIu with its own or igue rich hstory

in atec id urA rod by the Sm IT farm founders

cold si fh 1W dire emeritus ano

andon of Ic under By or iiith rec 3D

fk is for ii
ndorsfood from da one the st ong

cc ir cation hr 11 eon heafthy co nmon ties and the

ig tu success of sonipany IT at conirnitment

is idler ted in lWs busircs Pho and tho resoonsible

Nay in which treat einployces nod he environment

ilso evident ft ir way 1W ham establ shed

ml oh lam th opic ider 51 ig ts goon fodunc

vim orgar izatio IT of york Ic advan society arid

po anti of cv divor al

test do long before co po ate tizonship

was mi icr concept businee and ohilanthropy

uopohec on ployec wel heir and is ivolvod

wth 10 hO ceo es Ely 354 the ugh

Ia ively unj ompa DV to oalizec

cc pE anth rtm by cating the Ill no

Too mkepr of oundatio ater named the 1W

cundohor hogan pm manly as grant rograms that

puu 01 7W nmn rim en Idren

ho oundat ion also bugar ork ng with Nationa

Merit owa ding ye scholarships 1968 lo daft

over 569 so iol ims hips hr ye been awarded For

total of $2l 30726 In 1033 the found Itio egar

working with Scholarship Am emma arid to late tot

0r 284 unholarsh ps have henri nwa rInd for iota

$6 308600

During these eai ly years the Foun Ia on cc looked

beyond educatio making direct coritrihution to in

array loca no lprobt organization look throu 1h the

Foundations ear handwr ttei nanc an hives reveal

contributions to diverso an ay of ins tutions hospitals

iamaies ncisou apea hausas neghbm5oc

asse uiation hr alfh safety am hoi sing programs

disastr chef orginizations arid scouting groups

1110 recipients oF included umur us org irii/atior

dudic ited to serv ng those ioed th ors on us

where wu work arid ive

In moms ecent years ti 01 idat on has volvcd and

narrowed attntion to ducat on the arts calIF

arid ioman 15 vi es the environ ient aid yoms Ti as

for employee 01 itmib ito is th most funds direr ted

to colleges universities md pmivat secornlamv schools

9o9 the four dat or oftablmf od anc to onm iotA



also focused on develop ng long tern relationsh ps

wth key institutons it began supporting over 40 years

ego Many of these partnerslrnps are hod to lWs

dwest roots and the value it places cn education

parhculary scientifc educaton The partnership rIse

gn wth the co ipanys spint entrepreneunalisrn

and scientdc innovation

for example 11W has supnortnd several xpansionc

and renovations ot thr Adler Planetaru as iconic

930s structure Chicago and helped fund ts

mportant role in the 960s sp tee race 11W

has also been supporting exhit Its at ticagos

Museum if Science and Industry helped bu Id the

II inois Ho ocaust Museum Lducat or Center or

revamped the laboratories at tIe Un versity of linois

at Cli cage 11W businesses support severa chapters

of Juour coven br rt gruup rout ruvrdes

volunteer lee business educat en to schools 11W is

also long time su porter of national organizat is

such as the Red Cress lie American ancer Scciety

the United Way an many othe

As tIre Inundation lies grown or evolved aongcide

the comparr it has sought to engage its employees

ill cornrtiunity supp rt one exte ie its iiiantnrop

tu en tirnun ties over North Ar nerica hat effoi

began ir 1983 when the Foundation organ zed

campaign to matcf eixiployee cor tribut ens the

Statue of body rc deratior pro oct It opened the

door to hraader iatc iing progrtrx and the hr
rig

of mp oyec coritributier arger nationa arid

nternational disaster off ids ict us support thm

vict tic of 9/11 he Japan carthguake Australian fires

and TI land feeding Today the TVV Foundations

matchng program xi itches employee donations three

to one one of tfe highest match rates among U.S

public compariiec hose fi iancia contributions arc

supplemented by thousands of ye ri iteer hours am

kind donrtiont

As 11W continues expand its globe footprint

the 11W loundat or is actively explor rig option

to extend it et errg philanthropy egrarrr beyond

Nerrh mei nrougr endowments frerti 11W thc

llltV roundation eekc ferwari to new century

ger rous globa giving

Wr want commnur tits all eve the world to beneti

frorti the cernrmitinent and gorier Cy that wcv see

from 11W exrpl tees here in the U.S says Smith

who served is the pros dent the 1W Foundatio ii

add tion to fin exec itive reIns tO TW he hr alth of

the .omrT ui ties Wi ur prop and rk

vital to the long terr succecs ci ur husinesc



Ir 20 Mt er Wed rig emp oer Appleton

he pcd vor 3000 tndentr in kindergarten throu

hich school die ove thi vorld of bus ness dir gh

th Junior Aol cvi mont pr gram or Ac rer in ii

nr ional non rot orga Wuhon witl Ic no
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Ic ipport tI pr of
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yr rg poop It at will empower to he

glof al economy Approxi ira JO Miller nployr

co unto red their ti ne br lit in die rico ano

clasooor is Whir 20 mi adios of AppI dorm Mu or

ice long Ii sft ry nu podng the rograrr with

nrari employer son ving as ma orrod JA ins run ore

lft ns bier supp art
rig

Jun ar hx vomnent for

ly 60 tears an ri addit 011 our We oman

volu lIce rs ye lravo active artricrsh ps with tic

Chicago South exas West Jexas Cleveland

if ahma NeW islmr Oh 0115
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ftWs sup ort for Americar Gance Sc cicty AGO
began ft 1955 with donation of $150 At Food

Lqu pment Group 50 in irs OH irivolven ent

began about ten years ago with ar dO of

employees who raHed ab ut 51 000 for the ACS

Today FF0 is stror ig fu dras ig forc toi thc

organizaton In 2011 30 employees participated

the ACS Rela fort fc ecent which rases funds for

range of crtcal ancsi patient supp ft sersice and

suivivoi schoarships he race also gisen snrnivors

and their familft mci hers place to others

passionate abc end ng cai eec

Combined th onsite fundraisc rs suet as raffles

cinches and out ngs FEC ernp ees riised 1000

for ACS in 2011 These donations are given boost

lVV generous iree focon mat ing gift

prograrr but are larjel di ive by emp oees effor

exarnplc FE so offi rs $25 stars in honor

men ory of loved on Ic st to im cr The stars arc

splayd in FE Gs obbft arid lay foi Life tei

vivid testament to the co sipar cor pass on arid

in tiatke oyee at Nc itO Amer cai OW bus nesses

like LEG contributed over $72.000 anc the

Foundation matched at cpprcxi iatelft $229000 for

total contrihut on ton ing $300.000 0Th CEO Da id

Speer and his wife Barbara alsc ser ed as cc rirs of

the 20 11 America Cancc 5cc et DO mvcry Hall

mpany ike ft has Ia ge pool ded ated is

oy il retirees Not ma or ipanies eek ti crc ag

heir re rr bass ar fewer ii clai site hays

poc of 6.050 sc icr tizens act Sy co is ected tIs

co ipa iv throuo 01 ink ering nd tundra sing

ihs Seniors Outreact ouo vas Ic rnied iii 9t tc

serve two viluable oinrnurity reeds coririe ffro

large poc sk ed an hedicated forrs er p1 iee
with organizations badly in need volunteer sr rvi

ird provide ths so cal connections and act vity th it

car be nva iable tl mc ntal physical wet

be
rig of ncr or citiz ns In fad tl is grou aIds for

al cvcnt air iv Ii mis rida arid Ariz rv

Seniors Outreach so ve dig ble reti ee an

uppo tuuity lift recsvir ig Ws mcmi

tF ree to one ma ch for co itribut to ap row

cha table orc ariizat on th cI or tu su port

donatior Cr ted arc ii at Thed ne to

one my solur teer at the crporatc offics ii

xct anq for stipi rid that
ii dorated tc irt er

cli srities seE ctr fc orporate vo unteer asogr me

Sins fou idin Se iors itrea Th a5 olunt mred

hundreds of iurs ornm in ty rervics ass

th iusor da of lollac rnnc al donat ons
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Prsrrnr Medn Avar

Under the bcarlcrU ip of the exooutrc vrce president

urtdaritr NOW Nagaraja tI Weldnng p1 ItfOrrn

mt ker boon strategic tulti level rocruting

artd leadershr fcvoloprnent cOo lhc object yes

ma ludc buildr ig benclt strengtfr to fill management

opj ortsn titles Iii
rig

the talcn pipe ins and no easing

the diversIty Of VVs workfoice Ir 20 we worked

am twr asper of thesr obja oboes

Liusneses no the eldnng plot5 ro fl ated

rot itnon progran highl divr roe group

progr tm participant0 joined TVV aa early nn ca ocr

profes on is set mrart ri nlrtary OP arid new

co loge graduotou these ernp ces are

ssngt ed Tlentor and placed in vo year tot Storms

dcparer Is arid gven leImna rncncgenrent

rn Or learnn tW arturmit cs

Also partner Wp vith UNCE United Negro

College und weldi ig busnrnosscs began tin
rag

Africa Amercan so lcg studs nts to paid

rnrnor iternships across the platlornias 23 U.S

bus ness units through specilic projects and other

resporasibi ties the mnltarils arc give art opportun ty

Sc opp vvhat Thcy have Icc ned nr the as oo Ic

makinj contribution to the rr sper live sit neso saint

Uporn aucceusful completio of the sumna in ternshi

interns receive mm 11W UNCF scholarship whc helps

pay fo the tu hun books arid fees

Sac 1ob rotation prograr and 55 UNCF partrte ch

comp en ent UN Weldngs existing cede shtj

0cm bopment 0pproaeh br establ Jnnng empboyse

hri xhntait gre Ocr Ieadersh ootent
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In 201 Dyrratc it nO rconvgc IN obtarr ed

rm rtrheation to continue as worksrte wL ret

the hrghest ye of ecognrtion offert by the

cu atrons ifety 00th Adri intrati

0SFlA VoUrt ry cOo ni Progromc VPP Th

cept as VPP worksite the boO ross

roust rslr Ve or cxc np iry comprehensrve

soc oefu cafty nanaqo ne it yOcri Th root Orfy as

VPP 01 AR wo ksr the ucrrnes nust undo gc

rqorous ske evaluatron by team OSHA safety

or he Ith expert whc exa icr oath of the rcqurred

leroer Is of orb oak ty and salth management

proqr amer ver yrng tha In stes xcucatronal safety

ann ho prog en moot the nrgn ual my expe Ace

of VPP adiemp nt self rrffcrerrsy of STA

cr esites emr abrlr to dcntrfy and cc Ore

vom kplaw hazard reuSes them exempt from the

Of IA rnir mrs ration planne rn pre hor re as long as

ft bus roan us VI status he riur

and mllnc es of VPP tAR skes art sigr rfmcarrt

wor in Natmon Bureau of hr averages In fact

01 porcen of all U.S hr doer ee have achmcved

gr on as VPP worksr

he iealtfr fair at Ii ood Lquprm nt Uroup

Troy OF ms two day event teaturi rq door pu/es

rntor ctrve hoot armd speake or topmcs mar grrrg

mm safct sO nabir past fa rs argar er

have rmvmted rcpresentatrve from the boa fmro and

potce depart xic Os the Anmericar Red Uro and

the Ohio onrnental Protechon Agency to address

cycle safety sefe dm mvrr fAst amd Vmts tor rnado

season and gas cat checks The farr also educa cc

err ployoes abor alternatrve approaches to wellnoss

And rvrth rough 90 percent tendance th Or mc

good opportunrty to mncreace crtrc pat on mn 11W free

nmtrmc health screenrng program The tar ju

one part of Os p1w keep ealth top of rn nd for

rts 400 employees Arr LU err ploye also estahl sIred

an immensely popular krds tr athlon many mp oyooo

now support tIre eve it with proceeds berrefrttrng

coal Un ted Way chapter



LI 11 iii Is

LOU if 01

Undo Ins

jon sot Stir Ird It It

SO ndorl es oI nu

rs pn

In If II

tI rt so id ors

It itro uS so

ir to Ic Jot

ost Jul ic sL yc p1

Es rC 111 ISSLI

tACO an adhesivi bus ness Rockland MA addud more products
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ly recogn zsd Jcporidenf orqanizat on that uses

IrnUs shng und nn du snt her ntv 53r1d3rj5 proju ffc jI .5

cm harm volatfe pan cc ilpounds VOCs into the air of indoor spaces

qua ity
atE cts workers who use udhesives as we as consumers spendiriq timnc in

homcs ant offices constructed with these prduoO Thr reffificaton also qualfeo

th products for IF ED crud its uadci ship ir nc rgy Lnvirorte ci ita Dr sign the

ac epted atng system for green constiuctior Jevclopud bvtho US Ore

Ru ng ur ci GE cs rtit aton is vo un ary parate fr ai gosei rr it 0/or
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As expan is worldwide Wilsonart is dot pening ts longstandirtq cornrttitment

to the onvironn ent by developinq robust susie labffty polk es ar ngorom

near is goals In 201 Wilsonart made stgriificant ogress toward these goals

at its North encan marrutact inng plants It achk ved rrtinlmur 20 per wnt

poot consumer recycled content its larzcnate pro mets and 66 percent po

consumer con cut certan backer products The ompany also ear tied 0omo

of the nost respected envirortr enta cerbhcations received GOLF NGUARD

sr irtdeoende envirr Itental testing organisat on and Scient Ic Certified Ofl

Syste ns Indoor Adva ltaqe Gold to improved Indoor air quality and it WOS the

hrst lam nate mano tacturer to achieve Forest Stewsrdsh Counc certifoatiori

In add hon Wi sonart developo manufac or ng improvement goals bas on

2010 benchmarkrng began product life cycle assessment and completed

sr stai lability trair ing for all employees

11 just ninc months ITW abe ri Gardrtr KS welt Irom hovind rio recvclirtq

program to running bus ness that can boast zero waste to landfil stream

An part of lscompany de Go Green initiative fW abels us an xternal

wasto consultant recom nendrd by 11W rategic So ircir to dove op recycling

program that eparates waste flows for over 20 fterent mater als goner Ked by

111 ir manufacturing pror ess Items include paper cardboard metal scrap ink

hr Wets plast aluminum and glass as wel IS various print ng and packag ug

roateri 115 11W Labels also art ers with loca cots ent cor ipany to pic ip th

label stock waste the company burns the wa to as al rep acoment to heat

thu to us used in cement manufactLiring 11W abels efforts oil reduce costs ar

save 360 tons of olid waste annually from enter ng the nation lartdflls
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onsider the range prodor Is hat touch hves

Pu clothes cud shoes we wear the curs we dnve

the mobile dcv ces eve come to depe rid on or or

the tny denta or bioinedc al ces that prorilote

health and longevty Lverf ore olthesc pro lucts

has its own environr ental footpr nt easure of the

natural ese urces eniissions and waste gene ated

its production ny forget that befor these

products ever reach thef sta up to igorous

testirg bxhaustire energy intenuve testing and

research of materials and she prodr etc makr

that tpnnt grorv ever larger

Tangible consumer industi products roust

be able to thsland the duress of daily Ic explairo

Ychya Glraragozlou pro presiden within liWs

reatively new est tnd Measurenserit platform based

Norwood MA Its essential to manufacte ng

th products ye to prorriises of quality reliability

and safety sma devce like heat valve or stent

requires many roLir ds of testinp by sma de sktoo

in ichine whe as orrteth ng like bridge cable

rrqu res ornr ous tee ting equipr terd his diversr

in cpu omer size shuNs the ope testing



coy tonments and how much ergv the procem

can consume

nntron one of the larger bunesses within 1W

Vest md Measureirrent platform drown the

companys or hstory of in ova on to design

testi products that have minimal environrTmenta

impact test equipment ma mfactumer ike Instro

can leverage its position or the greater quo since

testirmq is performed on hundreds of ditferent produ

by thoir rnanufactm mrs even one mmnovahonm car dr

change aeros multiple tow and countnr

or 1110

vsr rm0 Id iS Otyk

Li cdhi o1 ai
leetroPt Is inge of est ng nstrument

manufactured Instrons Ce Aer of Exeeller cc

based ir High Wyeorirbc UK hey are ounes sI

compact dynamic test systems that illustrate ho

nriovatior can rem big oar enc rqy effs enc But

it impohant to st understand ow co wermtional

dynamic test systems work The old game tbort

rAense use of hirlraui Oii water and 51 lorarlmr

electr al systems to power nd cool the macf in

If rough countless te inq reundo the conventionu

ervohydram lie teotmnq machine standard in the

industry for decaues requires th cc phase lectrical

power wate for coo rig high essure hydraulic oi

supp riunerous consumable pats and xtemv i\

regular rn nt mar cc

We knew our cus omem nted omething

caner quieter ld mc rr compact with iqhter



IN ti

environmental mpact that woulo keep the ir overa

costs of oevnerst down says Graham Rogers

genera manager at lnstron We developed what

we hcleve the an test rnsu iisr ths

future one that din irrates the use of drauls oil

reduces energy usre an cost and saves over

300000 gal ons of ling water over typical

fve year period

Ke for lristron is plac ng the conve itiona

iydrau ic actuator with more energy efficient

eetr near motor hr linear oto te dinology

of the Eleetr oRe Is changes the oamr it roan non

ony single phase plug in electnc3 source does

not use oi ooled by ruthei than water

So whether it used for testing the dur blity of

gym shoes artificial replacei or ts or auto

components integra ion of this nore cc stainable

technology leads to energy saRi gs acre ss

mult pIe ndustries

The innovation behind the Electrofluls can aso

save nearl 40000 lowatt hour of octricitv per

machine over typical five year oeriod The new

test iristrumer aiso uses far ft wei fi ters hoses

and other materials reduc ng coisumaf Ic wate

by over percenf compared th an tu valent

servohdraulic system And this ground brraking

desigr reduces the eaergy ineolved throaqhout

tee fuli pruuuct Re cycle produc ion inralauon

ut lization and maintenance

The amat data is aot iard to bel eve considering

hat lr stron invested over fve years of research and

developrT ent to overcome the challenges inheren

arm use mean iioior aecnnoiogy in oynannc

nate als test
rig

wh Ic Say rig rn ndful of ft hig

stakes involved wth ccurate and reliable testng

Cerft in others have II ed create these rids

of test systems hct they could not fully macicr tfro

technical challenges elI near motor echnology

whle irnprov nq upon the precis or arid fan liar

characterist cs of con ontion al iydraul machines

nlatns Shun gui When ro as to ensuring

th clurab
lit of passenger plane component or

medic device like head valve the mach ne has

to get it right We viarted to develop product that

our customers car depend upon ile making huge

strides efficiency

1154/s Ten and Measurement patfarm Cisfi

explornj ways to ir ip ovo how it manages tire

environmental mpuct of it owr operations

Suet br Slier die isi air withir the platform based

ii ake Bluff routes mater us tet
rig prodnicte

used by ianufacta nq faeilitie laborator es and

unversitres The coariys sectioning mounting

grinding and polish ng maging and ana ys

tardness testim equipment and reP ted consumabe

oductc tcabe iticul ressarul or rater ais ttmut

an advance ience and industry Rut they so



necosotats sigr ificant umes of pockagir for

sincle uao ports or ft rge piecs of equipmen

2310 hior wa ur vi tr rah compactor

to ma age thc iurnerous kad packaging and

shppi aturiol wastu mm ic atenal tus ing

ducts rnanufacturod But after brfigin3 in an

external suab iriabf ty riar font and tappi nto

Strat pa Sours ng proqr iii the company has

hoc on robuot recycl ng rograrr throughout ts

opc ations and fi ont offic he program proverts

im 02 flO inds ot taco 1mm cntcnnu

and ifim ann Addition so aervation elfods

lcd ttuehloi cc vert to energy
ffc ent lighting

reducind its lowatt hour by 14 rcont annually

hr me ch nqcs avo not oniy madc for mc re

sr St iinab opo at ons they have altered the way

en Oovess app id the work

there wa so much shared nxcitement around

thu cr cc av nqc data rscalls Michelu Amison

er ger oral mager it ca had profound

flcct or my of ocr en ployoes they look at what

we do and how we do it Iferent way It is not

jut ou oducts that need to be low mpact on the

environmen our opera ions to wet

Aomne lh se rodu related cha include

reusab cloth as an alternativc to grindii ig paper used

rosira to eliminate mx is Arnicon hovcs esc nd

of smal innovat ons can influence cuatori ur ss

id istm es anc countrics epocially thomc who are

alroaly coop to moat cq nsteriai prnnnratn

testing and arc lys proces that pm ts lea strom

on the planet

We ccl qloba gh fcc org imsoatiori

cien%f sally oriented individua who tak the long

em and on.ader suctainabil ty tc he as ortant

as the quality or accuracy of It lusting itself

stir sayc hro igl ii uvat 5crataS

transformatio we in rais tl is vicibility of thc

issues throughout the industrial rr ariufact ir no

industr arid make cal diffcren

In the yr arc ahead bath Inst aid Buehle II

ontinue to conduct rose ch on energy efticien

test nq pira nt and dcvclop close custo nei

relationsh ps to pinpoint solutions that havc

hro id rnp.ìr he1 il alan ho knopnj an em on

their own icaiufa curing processc oxpor ig how

smmi Opel at onal changer can iltivate culture

of sustainability that aligns with socially responsiblr

prodra uinov ition

ic ta polish op applicm ions md cformu at ona of
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